
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Jun 30 2022 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (None)

Invocation (Rev. Christopher Klukas, Good Samaritan Anglican Church)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize 2021-2022 Retirees

Presenters

2. Chemours Check Presentation to Clay Education Foundation

School Showcase (None)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and Workshop on May 24, 2022; Student Discipline Hearings and
Regular Meeting on June 2, 2022

2022 May 24 Special Mtg.pdf

2022 May 24 Workshop.pdf

2022 Jun 2_Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2022 Jun 2 Regular Mtg.pdf

4. C2 - Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2022-2023 to Florida Association of District School Superintendents

5. C3 - Clay Education Foundation Board of Directors 2022-2023 Appointments

School Board Member

6. C4 - Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2022-2023 to Florida School Boards Association

Florida School Boards Assoc Inv #12451.pdf

Human Resources

Page 1 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49625
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45560
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45576
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45576
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-may-24-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-may-24-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-jun-2-regular-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48613
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=45572
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48612
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/florida-school-boards-assoc-inv-12451.pdf


7. C5 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 6.30.2022.pdf

8. C6 - Kelly Services Amendments - Substitutes

Proposed Clay County Exhibit A  – Current pay with the $2.00 additional for non instructional at 1.30 MU.docx.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

9. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

June 30 (July 2022) Student Travel.pdf

10. C8 - 2022-2023 UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

220151 UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement.pdf

11. C9 - Addendum A to 2022-2023 UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

220152 Addendum A to UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement.pdf

12. C10 - 2022-23 Interagency Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Department of
Military Affairs; State of Florida

220155 FLYCA_Interagency Agreement Between SBCC & Dept Military Affairs.pdf

13. C11 - 2022-23 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County and District Board
of Trustees St. Johns River State College

220145 St Johns River State College Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement.pdf

14. C12 - 2022-23 Early College Program (formally Collegiate High School) Contract Between the School Board of Clay
County and District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College

220146 St. Johns River State College_Early College Program.pdf

15. C13 - Approve Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida, and South Village
Community Development District Regarding Usage of District Recreational Facilities

Middleburg High School Swim Team Pool Use Agreement (2022) - South Village.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

16. C14 - CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips

CTE Out-of-State and Overnight Field Trips (1).pdf

Instruction-Exceptional Student Education

17. C15 - Behavior Management Consultants

220147 Behavior Management Consultants.pdf

18. C16 - Alonzo Sign Language Interpreting

220149 Alonzo Sign Language.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

19. C17 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Florida Gateway College.

220113 Florida Gateway College (2).pdf

Page 2 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49626
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-6302022-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49641
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-clay-county-exhibit-a-current-pay-with-the-200-additional-for-non-instructional-at-130-mudocx.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48603
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/june-30-july-2022-student-travel_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48620
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220151-unf-dual-enrollment-articulation-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48604
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220152-addendum-a-to-unf-dual-enrollment-articulation-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48602
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48602
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220155-flyca_interagency-agreement-between-sbcc-dept-military-affairs.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48606
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48606
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220145-st-johns-river-state-college-dual-enrollment-articulation-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48607
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48607
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220146-st-johns-river-state-college_early-college-program.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=47599
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=47599
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/middleburg-high-school-swim-team-pool-use-agreement-2022-south-village_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48615
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/cte-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49618
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220147-behavior-management-consultants.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49619
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220149-alonzo-sign-language.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49629
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220113-florida-gateway-college-2.pdf


20. C18 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and St. Johns River State College.

220134 St Johns River Student Affiliation.pdf

21. C19 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University.

220150 Liberty University.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

22. C20 - 2022-2023 Clay County School Board Agreement with Flagler Health for BRAVE Program

22-23 Flagler Hospital BRAVE Agenda Submission.pdf

Business Affairs

23. C21 - Approve the 2022-2023 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J.
Gallagher & Co. (broker)

Gallagher Insurance Renewal Summary 2022-2023.pdf

24. C22 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-23

22 23 Allocation Summary - June 30, 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

25. C23 - Monthly Financial Reports for May, 2022

May 2022 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

May 2022 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

CONTRACTS 50 Thousand and Greater.xlsx.pdf

26. C24 - Budget Amendment Report for May 31, 2022

Budget Amendment May 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

27. C25 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2022

Deletion Report June 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

28. C26 - BID to be Awarded

29. C27 - BID Renewal

Operations

30. C28 - 2022-2023 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County, Florida; and Town of
Orange Park and the Town of Orange Park Police Department.

220142 Town of Orange Park PD MOU - 6.30.22 Board Agenda (1).pdf

31. C29 - 2022-2023  School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County, Florida; City of
Green Cove Springs Florida; and Green Cove Springs Police Department.

220141 City Of Green Cove Springs PD MOU  - 6.30.22 Board Agenda.pdf

Operations-Facilities

Page 3 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49630
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220134-st-johns-river-student-affiliation.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49631
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220150-liberty-university.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49624
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-flagler-hospital-brave-agenda-submission.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49640
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49640
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/gallagher-insurance-renewal-summary-2022-2023.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49615
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-allocation-summary-june-30-2022_3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49633
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greaterxlsx_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=50641
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-may-2022.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=48619
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-june-2022.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=46597
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49632
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49616
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49616
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220142-town-of-orange-park-pd-mou-63022-board-agenda-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49617
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49617
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220141-city-of-green-cove-springs-pd-mou-63022-board-agenda.pdf


32. C30 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 6.30.22.pdf

33. C31 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights Elementary
School New Cafeteria/Classrooms

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

School Board Attorney

34. D1 - Adopt Superintendent’s Memorandum in Support of Declaration of Emergency and Approve the emergency
adoption and implementation of amendments to the Manual of Procedures for Media Services and The Handbook of
Instructional Materials Procedures as contained in School Board Policies 4.44C and 4.45 respectively

35. D2 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve amendment to School Board Manual of
Procedures for Media Services and The Handbook of Instructional Materials Procedures as contained in School Board
Policies 4.44C and 4.45F respectively

Legal Adv Notice of PH SB Policies 4.44C & 4.45F.pdf

36. D3 - Adopt Superintendent’s Memorandum in Support of Declaration of Emergency and Approve the emergency
adoption  and implementation of School Board Policy Human Resources Policy 2.02 (Application and Recruitment) to
add 2.02E. (Unlawful Employment Practices)  and the creation of School board 4.66 (Curriculum and Instruction
Required Instruction)

Policy 2.02E (H.B.7_ F.S. 760.10 as amended) (3).pdf

Memorandum of Declaration of Emergency Policies 2022 H.B.7.pdf

PROPOSED Policy 4.66 (H.B.7_ F.S.) (4) (3).docx

37. D4 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve amendment to School Board Human Resources
Policy 2.02 (Application and Recruitment) to add 2.02E. (Unlawful Employment Practices)  and the creation of School
Board 4.66 (Curriculum and Instruction Required Instruction)

Policy 2.02E (H.B.7_ F.S. 760.10 as amended) (3).pdf

Legal Adv Notice of PH SB Policies 2.02E and 4.66.pdf

PROPOSED Policy 4.66 (H.B.7_ F.S.) (4) (3).docx

38. D5 - Adopt Superintendent’s Memorandum in Support of Declaration of Emergency and Approve the emergency
adoption  and implementation of School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights and Student Welfare)

Memorandum of Declaration of Emergency Policies 2022 (1).pdf

Policy for  H.B. 1557 (2022)and H.B 241 (2021) and docx (1).docxFINAL.pdf

39. D6 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve the creation and implementation of School
Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights and Student Welfare)

Policy for  H.B. 1557 (2022)and H.B 241 (2021) and docx (1).docxFINAL.pdf

Page 4 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49622
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-63022.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49623
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49623
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49634
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49634
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49634
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49639
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49639
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49639
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-notice-of-ph-sb-policies-444c-445f.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49636
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49636
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49636
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49636
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-202e-hb7_-fs-76010-as-amended-3_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/memorandum-of-declaration-of-emergency-policies-2022-hb7.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-policy-466-hb7_-fs-4-3.docx
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49635
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49635
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49635
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-202e-hb7_-fs-76010-as-amended-3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-notice-of-ph-sb-policies-202e-and-466.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-policy-466-hb7_-fs-4-3_1.docx
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49637
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49637
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/memorandum-of-declaration-of-emergency-policies-2022-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-for-hb-1557-2022and-hb-241-2021-and-docx-1docxfinal.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49638
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49638
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-for-hb-1557-2022and-hb-241-2021-and-docx-1docxfinal_1.pdf


Legal Adv Notice of PH SB Policy 1.15.pdf

Human Resources

40. D7 - Human Resources Special Action A

41. D8 - Human Resources Special Action B

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 5 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-notice-of-ph-sb-policy-115.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49627
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=49628


School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize 2021-2022 Retirees

Description
The Clay County School Board recognizes district employees who retired in the 2021-2022 school year by offering
congratulations and expressing appreciation for their years of faithful service to the district.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
For recognition only.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Recognition.  No action required.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, (904) 336-6701, brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
NONE

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Chemours Check Presentation to Clay Education Foundation

Description
Chemours Company will present a check to support Clay Education Foundation initiatives.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Presentation only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
To be determined

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and Workshop on May 24, 2022; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular
Meeting on June 2, 2022

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2022 May 24 Special Mtg.pdf

2022 May 24 Workshop.pdf

2022 Jun 2_Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2022 Jun 2 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 8 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-may-24-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-may-24-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-jun-2-regular-mtg.pdf


Page 9 of 432

DRAFT



Page 10 of 432

DRAFT



Page 11 of 432

DRAFT



Page 12 of 432

DRAFT



Page 13 of 432

DRAFT



Page 14 of 432

DRAFT



Page 15 of 432

DRAFT



Page 16 of 432

DRAFT



Page 17 of 432

DRAFT



Page 18 of 432

DRAFT



Page 19 of 432

DRAFT



Page 20 of 432

DRAFT



Page 21 of 432

DRAFT



Page 22 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2022-2023 to Florida Association of District School Superintendents

Description
Membership dues to the Florida Association of District School Superintendents (FADSS allows participation and networking
with superintendents statewide.  FADSS is the support and training organization for superintendents, as well as an effective and
persistent voice on the issues that are important to Florida school districts.  The school district reaps benefits by participating in
the Association, including state-of-the-art leadership training.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Budgeted item - for information only

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Budgeted item - $15,897.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 23 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Clay Education Foundation Board of Directors 2022-2023 Appointments

Description
Pursuant to Florida Statute 1001.453 (3) "Direct-support organization; use of property; board of directors; audit", the Clay
County Education Foundation, Inc. DBA "Clay Education Foundation" presents its 2022-2023 Board of Directors for
appointment by the School Board of Clay County.
2022-2023 Clay Education Foundation Board of Directors

Lisa Ashworth, Commercial Services Relationship Manager, Community First Credit Union-
Al DeJesus, FL Territory Manager, Rhodes Graduation Services-
Patrick Golemme, Chief of Community Affairs, Clay County Sheriff's Office-
Terry Hicks, General Manager, Office Depot/Office Max-
John David Horne, Associate Attorney, The Davie Law Firm-
Brian Knight, Founder, Pragmatic Works-
Jeff Moore, E-Solutions Director, CSX-
Pete Long-Innes, Chief Operationg Officer, HCA Florida Orange Park-
Nicole Quezada, Regional Services Consultant, Wells Fargo-
Michael Rathjen, Vice President of School Programs, Vy Star Credit Union-
Celeste Sciandra, Program Director, Northeast FL STEM2Hub-
Michael Smith, Realtor, Coldwell Banker Vanguard Realty, Inc.-
Gi Teevan, Owner, ProdiiGi/TECK Vending-
Karine Williams, Officer, Navy (Mayport)-
Danielle Wolbert, Realtor, Coldwell Banker Vanguard Realty-
Jennifer Young, Owner, Southern Social Marketing & Consulting LLC-

Ex-Officio:
Mary Bolla, School Board Chair, Clay County School District-
Makayla Buchanan, Executive Director, Clay Education Foundation-
David Broskie, Superintendent, Clay County School District-
Arnold Analogue, Representative, Clay County Education Association-
Meghan Grybb, 2022 Teacher of the Year, Clay County School District-

Gap Analysis
Ensuring we are compliant with Florida Statute 1001.453

Previous Outcomes
None

Expected Outcomes
Continuation of the strong working partnership between the Clay Education Foundation Board of Directors and the School Board
of Clay County.

Page 24 of 432

DRAFT



Strategic Plan Goal
1.3 "Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or able to
compete in the workforce;"
3.1 "Engage stakeholders to strengthen and build a collaborative and constructive environment that encourages high expectations
for all.

Recommendation
Accept the Clay Education Foundation Board of Directors as presented.

Contact
Makayla Buchanan, makayla,buchanan@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 25 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2022-2023 to Florida School Boards Association

Description
The Florida School Boards Association (FSBA) provides valuable services to local school boards.  These services include
researching legislative issues important to school systems in Florida and representing their views before the Legislature, the State
Board of Education, and other organizations interested in public education.  FSBA also provides valuable leadership training for
school board members.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve payment of FSBA dues.

Contact
Mary S. Bolla, School Board Chair; mary.bolla@myoneclay.net;

Financial Impact
Budgeted item - $19,195.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Florida School Boards Assoc Inv #12451.pdf

Page 26 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/florida-school-boards-assoc-inv-12451.pdf


Page 27 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 6.30.2022.pdf

Page 28 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-6302022-1.pdf


Page 29 of 432

DRAFT



Page 30 of 432

DRAFT



Page 31 of 432

DRAFT



Page 32 of 432

DRAFT



Page 33 of 432

DRAFT



Page 34 of 432

DRAFT



Page 35 of 432

DRAFT



Page 36 of 432

DRAFT



Page 37 of 432

DRAFT



Page 38 of 432

DRAFT



Page 39 of 432

DRAFT



Page 40 of 432

DRAFT



Page 41 of 432

DRAFT



Page 42 of 432

DRAFT



Page 43 of 432

DRAFT



Page 44 of 432

DRAFT



Page 45 of 432

DRAFT



Page 46 of 432

DRAFT



Page 47 of 432

DRAFT



Page 48 of 432

DRAFT



Page 49 of 432

DRAFT



Page 50 of 432

DRAFT



Page 51 of 432

DRAFT



Page 52 of 432

DRAFT



Page 53 of 432

DRAFT



Page 54 of 432

DRAFT



Page 55 of 432

DRAFT



Page 56 of 432

DRAFT



Page 57 of 432

DRAFT



Page 58 of 432

DRAFT



Page 59 of 432

DRAFT



Page 60 of 432

DRAFT



Page 61 of 432

DRAFT



Page 62 of 432

DRAFT



Page 63 of 432

DRAFT



Page 64 of 432

DRAFT



Page 65 of 432

DRAFT



Page 66 of 432

DRAFT



Page 67 of 432

DRAFT



Page 68 of 432

DRAFT



Page 69 of 432

DRAFT



Page 70 of 432

DRAFT



Page 71 of 432

DRAFT



Page 72 of 432

DRAFT



Page 73 of 432

DRAFT



Page 74 of 432

DRAFT



Page 75 of 432

DRAFT



Page 76 of 432

DRAFT



Page 77 of 432

DRAFT



Page 78 of 432

DRAFT



Page 79 of 432

DRAFT



Page 80 of 432

DRAFT



Page 81 of 432

DRAFT



Page 82 of 432

DRAFT



Page 83 of 432

DRAFT



Page 84 of 432

DRAFT



Page 85 of 432

DRAFT



Page 86 of 432

DRAFT



Page 87 of 432

DRAFT



Page 88 of 432

DRAFT



Page 89 of 432

DRAFT



Page 90 of 432

DRAFT



Page 91 of 432

DRAFT



Page 92 of 432

DRAFT



Page 93 of 432

DRAFT



Page 94 of 432

DRAFT



Page 95 of 432

DRAFT



Page 96 of 432

DRAFT



Page 97 of 432

DRAFT



Page 98 of 432

DRAFT



Page 99 of 432

DRAFT



Page 100 of 432

DRAFT



Page 101 of 432

DRAFT



Page 102 of 432

DRAFT



Page 103 of 432

DRAFT



Page 104 of 432

DRAFT



Page 105 of 432

DRAFT



Page 106 of 432

DRAFT



Page 107 of 432

DRAFT



Page 108 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Kelly Services Amendments - Substitutes

Description
This attached addendum to the Kelly Services Agreement will be in effect for the 2022-2023 school year, which presents
proposed hourly rates for substitutes.  This proposal will keep instructional substitute hourly rates the same as they were during
the COVID Bonus period.  The proposal increases non-instructional substitute positions to $12.00 per hour and adjust the early
child education teacher substitute with a High School Diploma to $12.75 per hour. 

The proposal also includes a reduction in the instructional substitute teacher markup rate from 1.33 to 1.30.  Other markup rates
will remain the same.

Clay County has a current contract with Kelly Services, which was approved by the Board on September 5, 2019.  This new
salary proposal will allow us to better serve stakeholders and recruit qualified substitute teachers for our classrooms.  The
contract has an exit clause that can be enacted by either party with a written thirty (30) day notice. 

Gap Analysis
As the provider of staffing services, Kelly Services shall be the employer of Assigned Employees and shall be responsible for the
staffing services listed: recruit, interview, select, and hire Assigned Employees; place Assigned Employees according to SDCC
requirements; pay Assigned Employees their wages and provide them the benefits that Kelly Services offers to them as Kelly
Services Employees; pay insurance premiums (e.g. Medicare), withhold payroll taxes (e.g. FICA) and fulfill its obligations for
unemployment compensation; provide workers compensation benefits; and maintain Assigned Employees personnel and payroll
records related to their employment by Kelly Services.  

Previous Outcomes
The Agreement was Board approved September 5, 2019, and has been used successfully to provide quality substitutes to the
district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect Kelly Services to continue providing quality substitutes.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the amendment to the original Kelly Services Contract, which adds additional funding for substitute services for the
District.

Contact
Brenda Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources; brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net; 904.336.6701

Financial Impact
This Proposal includes an increase of approximately $670,000 to the 2022-2023 Kelly Services Budget.

Review Comments

Attachments

Proposed Clay County Exhibit A  – Current pay with the $2.00 additional for non instructional at 1.30 MU.docx.pdf

Page 109 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-clay-county-exhibit-a-current-pay-with-the-200-additional-for-non-instructional-at-130-mudocx.pdf


EXHIBIT A
PRICING FOR KELLY EDUCATIONAL STAFFING

This Pricing Exhibit A is incorporated and made part of the Agreement for Educational Services between Kelly Services, Inc., and
School Board of Clay County, dated 7/1/2022. The pricing in Exhibit A is confidential and proprietary to Kelly. Customer agrees
not to disclose the contents of Pricing Exhibit A to persons or entities not party to this agreement without Kelly’s written
permission.

1. Types of Assignments; Pricing
The Assigned Employees will be assigned to the following positions and at the following rates:

Position Pay Rate Pay Type Markup Bill Rate

SUBSTITUTE TEACHER (TRANSITIONAL
EMERGENCY SUB)

$     12.66 Hourly 1.30 $   16.46

SUBSTITUTE TEACHER-AA DEGREE $     14.00 Hourly 1.30 $   18.20

ECE TEACHER AA DEGREE $     14.00 Hourly 1.40 $   19.60

SUBSTITUTE TEACHER- BA DEGREE $     14.66 Hourly 1.30 $   19.06

ECE TEACHER - BA DEGREE $     14.66 Hourly 1.40 $   20.52

SUBSTITUTE TEACHER- MASTER'S DEGREE OR
HIGHER

$     16.00 Hourly 1.30 $   20.80

ECE TEACHER - MASTER’S DEGREE $     16.00 Hourly 1.40 $   22.40

SUBSTITUTE TEACHER ASSISTANT $     12.00 Hourly 1.30 $   15.60

LONG TERM SUB PAY- (11+ Days, Retro Back
to Day 1)

$    20.00 Hourly 1.295 $ 25.90

ECE TEACHER - HS DIPLOMA $     12.75 Hourly 1.40 $   17.85

CUSTODIAN SUBSTITUTE $      12.00 Hourly 1.37 $   16.44

CAFETERIA ASSISTANT SUBSTITUTE $      12.00 Hourly 1.37 $   16.44

2. Pricing for Hiring a Kelly Temporary Employee
If Customer hires an Assigned Employee before the Assigned Employee works 90 substitute days, Customer agrees to pay a
placement fee upon hiring the Kelly Educational Staffing temporary employee to work in full- or part-time position of
employment with the Customer. The placement fee is based on days worked.  The fee schedule is set forth below.

1 – 60 days worked 0    % of annualized salary*

61 – 90 days worked 0    % of annualized salary

90+ days worked Fee Waived

*Annualized salary based on the daily bill rate would be calculated as follows:
Total school days in a school year multiplied by the daily bill rate = annualized salary
The annualized salary calculation using hourly rates is calculated as follows:
Total school days in a year multiplied by the hourly bill rate multiplied by the number of hours per work day = annualized
salary

KELLY SERVICES, INC.

By: _________________________________________

Name:______________________________________

Title: ________________________________________

Date: _______________________________________

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY

By: _________________________________________

Name:_______________________________________

Title: ________________________________________

Date: ________________________________________

© 2018 Kelly Services, Inc. An Equal Opportunity Employer e283     R12/18Page 110 of 432

DRAFT



© 2018 Kelly Services, Inc. An Equal Opportunity Employer e283     R12/18Page 111 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose
Fleming Island
High

7/3-8, 2022
Tallahassee,
FL

Band Band Leadership development.

Fleming Island
High

7/23-26,
2022

St. Augustine,
FL

Dance  Dance Camp

Middleburg High
10/25-29,
2022

Indianapolis,
IN

FFA National FFA Convention

Middleburg High
9/9-11,
2022

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC Orienteering Training

Middleburg High 10/29/22
Blythe Island,
GA

NJROTC Orienteering Training

Middleburg High
12/9-10,
2022

Newman, GA NJROTC Orienteering Training

Oakleaf High
10/25-29,
2022

Indianapolis,
IN

FFA National FFA Convention

Oakleaf High
6/19-25,
2022

Milledgeville,
GA

NJROTC Leadership Training

Oakleaf High
6/27-7/1,
2022

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC Leadership Training

Orange Park
High

11/19-21,
2022

Ft.
Lauderdale,
FL

Band
To perform and receive constructive feedback from a
panel of highly qualified adjudications.

         

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Page 112 of 432

DRAFT



Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum & Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

June 30 (July 2022) Student Travel.pdf

Page 113 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/june-30-july-2022-student-travel_1.pdf


Page 114 of 432

DRAFT



Page 115 of 432

DRAFT



Page 116 of 432

DRAFT



Page 117 of 432

DRAFT



Page 118 of 432

DRAFT



Page 119 of 432

DRAFT



Page 120 of 432

DRAFT



Page 121 of 432

DRAFT



Page 122 of 432

DRAFT



Page 123 of 432

DRAFT



Page 124 of 432

DRAFT



Page 125 of 432

DRAFT



Page 126 of 432

DRAFT



Page 127 of 432

DRAFT



Page 128 of 432

DRAFT



Page 129 of 432

DRAFT



Page 130 of 432

DRAFT



Page 131 of 432

DRAFT



Page 132 of 432

DRAFT



Page 133 of 432

DRAFT



Page 134 of 432

DRAFT



Page 135 of 432

DRAFT



Page 136 of 432

DRAFT



Page 137 of 432

DRAFT



Page 138 of 432

DRAFT



Page 139 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - 2022-2023 UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

Description
A collaborative agreement between the University of North Florida and the School Board of Clay County for Dual Enrollment
purposes.  This agreement allows Clay County students to enroll in college courses on the UNF campus for both college credit
and high school credit.  This agreement outlines policies pertaining to Dual Enrollment and the roles and responsibilities of each
entity.

Gap Analysis
This agreement must be made in order to continue this offering to Clay County students.

Previous Outcomes
The purpose of entering an agreement with this institution is that several students from Clay County have enrolled in courses at
UNF and, therefore, would qualify for Dual Enrollment.  Students from the Oakleaf area, in particular, have been able to
participate.  

Expected Outcomes
One of the goals of Clay County is to increase the number of students who participate in academic accelerated programs - Dual
Enrollment being one of those programs.  However, it is expected that the number of students who will attend UNF will be
minimal.

Strategic Plan Goal
The District will work closely with UNF in order to better advise students on the postsecondary opportunities available to all. 
Students who successfully pass a course earn acceleration points for their home schools while preparing themselves for college
level work.

Recommendation
Approval of the 2022-2023 Dual Enrollment Agreement between University of North Florida and the School Board of Clay
County. (This agreement is continual unless any changes or modifications need to be made).

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief of Academic Services, 904-336-6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services. 904-336-6918, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Approximately $2500 - 100.5100730.9007.0000

Review Comments

Attachments

220151 UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement.pdf

Page 140 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220151-unf-dual-enrollment-articulation-agreement.pdf


Page 141 of 432

DRAFT



Page 142 of 432

DRAFT



Page 143 of 432

DRAFT



Page 144 of 432

DRAFT



Page 145 of 432

DRAFT



Page 146 of 432

DRAFT



Page 147 of 432

DRAFT



Page 148 of 432

DRAFT



Page 149 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Addendum A to 2022-2023 UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

Description
The Addendum A is for the High School Virtual Teaching Academy.  
A collaborative agreement between the University of North Florida and the School Board of Clay County for Dual Enrollment
purposes.  This agreement allows Clay County students to enroll in college courses on the UNF campus for both college credit
and high school credit.  This agreement outlines policies pertaining to Dual Enrollment and the roles and responsibilities of each
entity.

Gap Analysis
This Addendum A must be made in order to continue this offering to Clay County students. 

Previous Outcomes
The purpose of adding this addendum to the agreement is that students from Clay County who have enrolled in courses at UNF,
would qualify for this academy.

Expected Outcomes
One of the goals of Clay County is to increase the number of students who participate in academic accelerated programs - Dual
Enrollment being one of those programs.

Strategic Plan Goal
The District will work closely with UNF in order to better advise students on the postsecondary opportunities available to all. 
Students who successfully pass a course earn acceleration points for their home schools while preparing themselves for college
level work.

Recommendation
Approve Addendum A to 2022-2023 agreement between University of North Florida and the School Board of Clay County.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief of Academic Services; 904-336-6904; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net,
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; 904-336-6918; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Approximately $500.00

Review Comments

Attachments

220152 Addendum A to UNF Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement.pdf

Page 150 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220152-addendum-a-to-unf-dual-enrollment-articulation-agreement.pdf


Page 151 of 432

DRAFT



Page 152 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - 2022-23 Interagency Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Department of Military
Affairs; State of Florida

Description
A collaborative agreement between the National Guard (DMA) and the School Board of Clay County for the  purpose of
providing an alternative educational environment for students from the state of Florida.  The 2022-23 agreement allows for the
continuation of a longstanding relationship between the two organizations (since 2001).  Students from all 67 districts are eligible
to attend FLYCA and either obtain a GED, participate in credit recovery courses (K-12), and/or obtain a high school diploma. 
This agreement outlines the roles and responsibilities of the two organizations.

Gap Analysis
Through the intentional work and collaboration of the two organizations, the program averages 150+ graduates a class (2 classes
per year).  The program seeks to increase the passage rate each year of the GED candidates AND allows "Track 1" students to
earn credit recovery opportunities in order to move toward their diplomas when they return to their home school.  For the vast
majority of the cadets, without this program the student would be considered as dropouts.
 

Previous Outcomes
During the 2021-2022 school year, Track 2 cadets recorded a 62.5% completion for GED, with individual exam completion RLA
73.5%, Math 76%, Social Studies 79.5%, Science 93.5%.   Track 1 cadets have recovered/earned a total of 228 high school
credits utilizing the Edgenuity Software program.

Expected Outcomes
Cadets entering the program will continue to earn credit recovery grades in order to return to their home schools.  The goal is for
each cadet to earn at least 3 high school credits via their participation.  The goal for passage of the GED (4 sections) is 88% of
"Track 2" students.  Of the students who enter the program, FLYCA expects 93% to complete the entire program from beginning
to end.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
FLYCA provides an alternative setting for students who are behind in credits or who have difficulties functioning in a traditional
school setting. The program is a voluntary program that lasts for 5 1/2 months in the residential phase and then an additional 12
months in the post-residency phase.  This program provides an opportunity for students to get back on track with their
educational career and future career goals.

Recommendation
Approval of the 2022-23 Agreement

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6905
Kristin Rousseau, Supervisor of Adult Education, kristin.rousseau@myoneclay.net, 904-336-4467

Financial Impact
$575,000 will be paid by FLYCA to the District along with FTE generated funds

Review Comments

Attachments

220155 FLYCA_Interagency Agreement Between SBCC & Dept Military Affairs.pdf

Page 153 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220155-flyca_interagency-agreement-between-sbcc-dept-military-affairs.pdf


Page 154 of 432

DRAFT



Page 155 of 432

DRAFT



Page 156 of 432

DRAFT



Page 157 of 432

DRAFT



Page 158 of 432

DRAFT



Page 159 of 432

DRAFT



Page 160 of 432

DRAFT



Page 161 of 432

DRAFT



Page 162 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - 2022-23 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County and District Board of
Trustees St. Johns River State College

Description
A collaborative agreement between the St. Johns River State College and the SBCC for Dual Enrollment purposes.  The 2022-
23 agreement allows for the continuation of a longstanding relationship between these two organizations.  This agreement allows
Clay County students to enroll in college courses on the campuses of SJRSC and on each high school site.  The agreement
outlines policies pertaining to Dual Enrollment and the roles and responsibilities of each entity.

Gap Analysis
The agreement must be made in order to continue this offering to Clay students.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County has had a positive working relationship with SJRSC for many years.  This agreement benefits the students of the
District by allowing them to earn both college credits and high school credits simultaneously.  Thousands of students have earned
these dual credits over the years, thus, allowing students to accelerate their postsecondary work and to save parents/families
money. 
 

Expected Outcomes
Clay County students will continue to receive college-level courses on the high school sites and on the SJRSC campus and to
inform students of this opportunity.  It is expected that the total number of credit hours earned will slightly increase due to the
positive promotion of this program.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop a High Quality & Aligned Instructional System                
Strategy 1.3: Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or
able to compete in the workforce.
 

Recommendation
That the School Board of Clay County approve the 2022-23 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between the School Board
of Clay County and District Board of Trustees St. Johns River State College.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services, 904-336-6918, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Approximately $400,000.00 - 100.5100730.9007.0000

Review Comments

Attachments

220145 St Johns River State College Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement.pdf

Page 163 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220145-st-johns-river-state-college-dual-enrollment-articulation-agreement.pdf


Page 164 of 432

DRAFT



Page 165 of 432

DRAFT



Page 166 of 432

DRAFT



Page 167 of 432

DRAFT



Page 168 of 432

DRAFT



Page 169 of 432

DRAFT



Page 170 of 432

DRAFT



Page 171 of 432

DRAFT



Page 172 of 432

DRAFT



Page 173 of 432

DRAFT



Page 174 of 432

DRAFT



Page 175 of 432

DRAFT



Page 176 of 432

DRAFT



Page 177 of 432

DRAFT



Page 178 of 432

DRAFT



Page 179 of 432

DRAFT



Page 180 of 432

DRAFT



Page 181 of 432

DRAFT



Page 182 of 432

DRAFT



Page 183 of 432

DRAFT



Page 184 of 432

DRAFT



Page 185 of 432

DRAFT



Page 186 of 432

DRAFT



Page 187 of 432

DRAFT



Page 188 of 432

DRAFT



Page 189 of 432

DRAFT



Page 190 of 432

DRAFT



Page 191 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - 2022-23 Early College Program (formally Collegiate High School) Contract Between the School Board of Clay County
and District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College

Description
A collaborative agreement between the St. Johns River State College and the School Board of Clay County for Dual Enrollment
purposes that deals with legislation requiring all school districts to have a K-12 program in place each year.  This agreement
renews the contract for another year with Orange Park High School and Middleburg High School. This program will lead to
more students earning their "AA" degree upon graduating from high school.

Gap Analysis
Through the intentional work and collaboration of the two organizations and "Curriculum and Instructional" department, the
program has gained momentum in these two communities (OPHS and MHS).  The District will continue to identify students who
are eligible for this opportunity by reviewing grades and goals.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County has had a positive working relationship with SJRSC and this agreement benefits the students of the District by
allowing both college credits and high school credits at the same time.

Expected Outcomes
Clay County will continue to provide college-level courses on the two sites and to promote the "Early College Program"
initiative.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop a High Quality & Aligned Instructional System                
Strategy 1.3: Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or
able to compete in the workforce.     

Recommendation
That the School Board of Clay County School approve the 2022-23 Early College Program Contract Between the School Board
of Clay County and District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services, 904-336-6918, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Approximately $100,000 - 100.5100730.9007.0000

Review Comments

Attachments

220146 St. Johns River State College_Early College Program.pdf

Page 192 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220146-st-johns-river-state-college_early-college-program.pdf


Page 193 of 432

DRAFT



Page 194 of 432

DRAFT



Page 195 of 432

DRAFT



Page 196 of 432

DRAFT



Page 197 of 432

DRAFT



Page 198 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Approve Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida, and South Village Community
Development District Regarding Usage of District Recreational Facilities

Description
The School Board, for the past several years, has entered into an Interlocal Agreement with South Village Community
Development, the purpose of which is to allow the Middleburg High School swim team to use the competition swimming pool
facilities at the South Village Community Development for practices and swim meets.  The contract is essentially unchanged
from its format drafted in 2021 with the exception of the deletion of restrictions necessitated by the COVID pandemic.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow Middleburg High School swim team to use the South Village Community Aquatic Facility
competition swimming pool facility for practices and for swim meets.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Interlocal Agreement as submitted.

Contact
Martin Aftuck, Principal Middleburg High School; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Middleburg High School Swim Team Pool Use Agreement (2022) - South Village.pdf

Page 199 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/middleburg-high-school-swim-team-pool-use-agreement-2022-south-village_1.pdf


 

 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND SOUTH VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT REGARDING USE OF DISTRICT'S AMENITY COMPLEX FACILITIES 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is effective ____  day of _____ 2022, and is by and 

between: 

 

SOUTH VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-

purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, with 

offices at 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the 

"District"), and 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA (“School Board”) FOR THE 

USE AND BENEFIT OF THE MIDDLEBURG HIGH SCHOOL SWIM TEAM (“Swim 

Team”), 900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 (the School 

Board and the Swim Team together with the District, the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the purpose and intent of this Agreement to permit and authorize the 

School Board and the District to make the most efficient use of their respective resources, 

authority and capabilities by enabling them to cooperate on the basis of mutual advantage and to 

achieve the results provided in this Agreement pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, 

known as the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969 (“Cooperation Act”); and 

              

 WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Cooperation Act to provide a means by which the 

School Board and the District may exercise their respective privileges and authority which they 

may have separately, but which pursuant to this Agreement and Cooperation Act they may 

exercise collectively; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District is a special-purpose unit of local government established pursuant 

to and governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains certain recreational facilities, 

including a competition pool (“Aquatic Facilities”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the School Board, on behalf of the Swim Team, approached the District and 

expressed desires to make use of the Aquatic Facilities for practices and the hosting of swim 

meets; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District is willing to allow the Swim Team to make use of the Aquatic 

Facilities for practices and swim meets provided that such use does not impede the operation of 

the Aquatic Facilities; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the District has determined that providing the School Board with the ability to 

use the competition pool is a benefit to the District, is a proper public purpose, and makes 

appropriate use of the Aquatic Facilities; and 

Page 200 of 432

DRAFT



 

 2 

 

 WHEREAS, the District and the School Board warrant and agree that they have all right, 

power and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 

contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference 

are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2. TERM.  This Agreement shall be effective June 30, 2022, and shall 

terminate on November 30, 2022, unless terminated early in accordance with Section 8 below.  

However, the covenants and obligations of School Board contained in this Agreement shall 

survive termination for acts and omissions which occurred during the effective term of this 

Agreement.  

 

 SECTION 3. USAGE BY SWIM TEAM.   
 

A. Usage; Generally. The District hereby grants to the Swim Team a license to use 

the Aquatic Facilities for practices and meets in accordance with the schedules attached hereto as 

Exhibit A, as coordinated between the District’s representative and the Swim Team 

representative, and with the guidelines provided in Exhibit B, both of which are incorporated 

herein by this reference (“License”).  Swim Team shall hold no more than five (5) “Home” 

meets (four already scheduled and possible one more where indicated as “pending”) as indicated 

in the schedule provided in Exhibit A. The License to use the Aquatic Facilities is limited to the 

hours provided in such schedules.  In consideration of said use of the Aquatic Facilities, School 

Board and Swim Team agree to the following conditions: 

i. Access to the Aquatic Facilities is limited to the competition pool, the pool 

decks, parking lot serving the Aquatic Facilities and designated restrooms in case 

of emergencies.  No other use of, or access to, the District’s recreational facilities 

is permitted.   

ii. Swim Team understands and acknowledges that there are limited parking 

spaces available at the District’s facilities, which is primarily available for District 

residents wishing to utilize the District’s recreational facilities. During the meets, 

the Swim Team will leave at least one (1) row of parking spaces closest to the 

Aquatic Facilities open and available to residents who want to use the District 

facilities. Swim Team shall be responsible for redirecting the traffic to enforce the  

same.  No parking shall impede the flow of traffic on the streets. Swim Team staff 

shall inform its team members and the visiting teams and spectators coming to the 

meets of the limited parking available at the District facilities and shall encourage 

them to carpool to the District facilities. Swim Team shall, to the maximum extent 

possible, carpool to the District facilities for practices and meets, and whenever 

feasible, shall utilize a school bus or similar mode of mass transportation to arrive 

at the District facilities. 

Page 201 of 432

DRAFT



 

 3 

iii. The District hereby designates the District Manager or his or her designee 

as the District’s representative.   

iv. Swim Team’s use of Aquatic Facilities shall be in conjunction with the use 

of the Aquatic Facilities by other members of the public and by other swim teams, 

if any, and the Swim Team use shall not interfere with the operation of the 

Aquatic Facilities as a public improvement.   

v. All use of the Aquatic Facilities shall be subject to the policies and 

regulations of the District, including but not limited to the South Village Facilities 

and Amenity Policies, the Guidelines for the Swim Team Usage and Guidelines 

for Swim Team Meets, which are incorporated herein and attached as Exhibit B.   

vi. The District shall have the right to take such actions as are necessary to 

preserve the health, safety and welfare of its residents, landowners, lands and 

facilities.   

vii. Persons identified as Coaches by the Swim Team, and any such Coach’s 

minor children, may participate on the Swim Team and make use of the Aquatic 

Facilities during Swim Team practices and meets, regardless of the Coach’s status 

as a paid user of the facilities, subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement.  

viii. The Swim Team shall (i) provide one (1) time payment of five hundred 

dollars and zero cents ($500.00) to the District.  If requested by the District, Swim 

Team shall (ii) provide a minimum of five volunteers for one resident event as 

arranged by the District; and (iii) provide at least ten (10) volunteer hours each 

week during the term of this Agreement (which may include resident events 

referenced above).  

ix. All individuals associated with the Swim Team must submit a waiver in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C before accessing the District’s 

Aquatic Facilities. Allowing use without an executed waiver is grounds for 

termination of this Agreement. This waiver is in addition to any other waivers 

required by the School Board, Swim Team or the District. 

B. Usage During an Endemic or Pandemic. In the event of a known endemic or 

pandemic affecting the locality whereupon the District is located, the Parties agree that additional 

procedures may apply to the Swim Team’s usage of the Aquatic Facilities, which shall apply by 

an amendment to this Agreement to be executed by the Parties and Swim Team agrees to enter 

into same, as necessary.  

 SECTION 4. CARE OF THE PROPERTY.  School Board agrees to use all due care to 

protect the property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage, and to require any 

meet participants invited to the Aquatic Facilities to do the same.  School Board agrees that it 

shall assume responsibility for any and all damage to the District's facilities or lands as a result of 

School Board's use under this Agreement other than damage which may be attributable to 

ordinary wear and tear as determined by the District.  In the event that any damage to the 

Page 202 of 432

DRAFT



 

 4 

District's facilities or lands occurs, the District shall notify School Board of such damage and 

shall allow the School Board’s agents or employees the opportunity to examine the damage prior 

to repair.  Swim Team agrees that the District may make whatever arrangements necessary, in its 

sole discretion, to promptly make any such repairs as is necessary to preserve the health, safety 

and welfare of the District's lands, facilities, residents and landowners.  Swim Team agrees to 

reimburse the District for any such repairs within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from 

the District reflecting the cost of the repairs made under this Section. 

 

 SECTION 5. ENFORCEMENT.  A default by either Party under this Agreement shall 

entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be 

limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief and specific performance.  Notwithstanding 

this, the School Board’s right to recover damages from the District on any and all claims of any 

type shall be limited in all instances to no more than five-hundred dollars and zero cents 

($500.00). 

 

 SECTION 6.   INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.  The Swim Team agrees to 

indemnify and hold harmless the District and its officers, agents and employees from any and all 

liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries, 

death or property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, wholly or in part 

by, the use of the District's facilities and lands by the Swim Team and its guests, including 

litigation or any appellate proceedings, both in and outside court proceedings, with respect 

thereto, and specifically including but not limited to claims arising out of or connected to alleged 

or actual exposure to the COVID-19 virus.   

 

Notwithstanding any terms of this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties agree that 

nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of either the School Board’s or the District's 

sovereign immunity or limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or 

limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, 

Florida Statutes, or other statute.  The School Board, subject to the School Board’s self-insured 

retention, agrees and covenants to provide liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) applicable to bodily injury, sickness or death in any one occurrence and One 

Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for loss or damage to property in any one occurrence and shall 

provide evidence of such insurance in the form of an insurance certificate prior to commencing 

use of the District’s facilities under this Agreement.  Additionally, the School Board agrees that 

its policy may not be canceled during the term of this Agreement without at least thirty (30) 

days’ written notice to the District. 

 

Notwithstanding any language in this section to the contrary, nothing in this 

indemnification agreement shall be construed or interpreted to increase the scope or dollar limit 

of the Swim Team’s or the School Board’s liability beyond that which is set forth in Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes, or to otherwise waive the Swim Team’s/School Board’s sovereign 

immunity, or to require the Swim Team/School Board to indemnify District or any other person, 

corporation, or legal entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any 

acts other than the negligent acts of the Swim Team or the School Board or its agents or 

employees.  The Swim Team and the School Board shall not indemnify any party for attorney’s 

fees or costs other than those court costs which are set forth by Florida Statute or other Florida 

law as recoverable costs of court.  

Page 203 of 432

DRAFT



 

 5 

  

 SECTION 7. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES.  In the event either Party is required to 

enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party 

shall be entitled to recover from the other party all costs incurred, excluding reasonable 

attorneys' fees. 

 

 SECTION 8. TERMINATION.  Both Parties shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement at any time without cause with written notice.  However, the covenants and 

obligations of Swim Team contained in this Agreement shall survive termination for acts and 

omissions which occurred during the effective term of the agreement.  

 

 SECTION 9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This instrument, together with the attached 

Exhibits, shall constitute the final and complete expression of the agreement between the Parties 

relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 10.  AMENDMENT.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 

this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing that is executed by both Parties 

hereto. 

 

 SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Swim Team may assign their 

rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder 

without the prior written approval of the other.  Any attempted assignment without such written 

approval shall be void. 

 

 SECTION 12.  APPLICABLE LAW.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein 

shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  The 

Parties consent to and agree that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related to 

this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Clay County, Florida. 

 

 SECTION 13. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications 

hereunder ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by overnight delivery 

service or First Class Mail, postage prepaid, to the Parties, as follows: 

 

 1. If to Swim Team:  Middleburg High School Swim Team 

      2025 Highway 16 West 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043   

 Attn: Carol McDougall, Swim Team Coach 

   

  With a copy to:  J. Bruce Bickner 

      Attorney to Clay County School Board 

      900 Walnut Street 

      Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

 2. If to District:   South Village Community  

      Development District 

      475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

Page 204 of 432

DRAFT



 

 6 

St. Augustine, FL 32092    

 Attn: Jim Oliver, District Manager 

       

  With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 

      107 W. College Avenue 

      Tallahassee, Florida  32301 

      Attn:  Katie S. Buchanan, District Counsel 

 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 

only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 

place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  

If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-

business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  

Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 

regarded as business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for the School Board may 

deliver Notice on behalf of the District and the School Board.  Any party or other person to 

whom Notices are to be sent or copied shall notify the other parties and addressees of any change 

in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days’ written 

notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

 

 SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 

provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 

portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 

unenforceable. 

 

 SECTION 15. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 

authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the School Board, both the 

District and the School Board have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the 

District and the School Board have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 

provisions of this instrument. 

 

 SECTION 16. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 

construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

SECTION 17. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any 

number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, 

and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and 

acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single 

copy of this Agreement to physically form one document. 

 

 SECTION 18. ACCESS TO RECORDS.  The access to, disclosure, non-disclosure, or 

exemption of records, data, documents, and/or materials, associated with this Agreement shall be 

subject to the applicable provisions of the Florida Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida 

Statutes), and other applicable State or Federal law.  Access to such public records may not be 

blocked, thwarted, and/or hindered by placing the public records in the possession of a third 

party, or an unaffiliated party.  

Page 205 of 432

DRAFT



 

 7 

 

 SECTION 19.  FILING.  After approval of this Agreement by the respective governing 

bodies of the School District and the District, and its execution by the duly qualified and 

authorized officers of each of the Parties, the District shall cause this Agreement to be filed with 

the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Clay County, Florida, in accordance with the requirements of 

Section 163.01(11), Florida Statutes.  

 

 

 

[Signatures on next page] 

 

Page 206 of 432

DRAFT



 

 8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on the 

day and year first written above. 

 

 

       THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY 

       COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

       By_________________________________ 

                  Mary S. Bolla, Chairperson 

       Dated:______________________________ 

 

 

  

Witness: 

 

   

 

By        Dated:______________________________  

    BONNIE O'NORA 

    Secretary/Assistant Secretary         

   

 

        

Attest: 

 

 

 

By_____________________________________     Dated:______________________________ 

     DAVID S. BROSKIE, Superintendent of 

     Schools 

   

 

 

[Signatures continued on next page] 

 

Page 207 of 432

DRAFT



 

 9 

Reviewed for legal sufficiency by: 

 

 

 

______________________________________           Dated:___________________________ 

J. BRUCE BICKNER, Attorney for The School  

Board of Clay County, Florida 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       SOUTH VILLAGE COMMUNITY 

       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

 

       By_________________________________ 

            _________________________________ 

            Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

 

            Dated:____________________________ 

 

 

Witness: 

 

   

 

By      

 

 

Exhibit A Swim Team Practice and Meet Schedules 

Exhibit B Guidelines for Swim Team Usage 

Exhibit C Form of Waiver 

Page 208 of 432

DRAFT



 

 10 

EXHIBIT A  

 

Practice Schedule: 

 July 25th through July 29th: 7:30 am–9:30 am 

Remainder of Regular Season: Monday through Friday, 2:30pm-4:30 pm 
 

 
 

Page 209 of 432

DRAFT



 

 11 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Guidelines for Swim Team Usage 

 

1. All Swim Team usage of Aquatic Facilities must be pre-scheduled with District staff 

prior to the beginning of practices. 

 

2. Usage of the District facilities is limited to the Aquatic Facilities named in the Agreement 

and this exhibit ONLY. The Swim Team shall not have access to any other District’s 

recreational facilities, including but not limited to the clubhouse. 

3. Spectators that are not District residents may be present and are allowed to attend Swim 

Team competitions and meets subject to the conditions of this Agreement. However, the 

District, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to limit the number of such spectators (1) 

should the Aquatic Facilities exceed then-effective occupancy capacity or (2) should it be 

necessary to protect the health, safety or welfare of the District, its landowners, residents 

or its guests or the District property.   

4. Spectators and/or guests that are not District residents shall not be present during swim 

practices. 

5. Swim Team is responsible for ensuring that Swim Team members, visiting teams, guests 

and spectators, as applicable, abide by all District rules and policies, which may be 

amended from time to time in the District’s sole discretion. 

6. No Swim Team practices may be held on weekends or on days or times that the family 

pool is closed UNLESS the practices are held prior to facility opening to the public, or 

otherwise as permitted by the District.  On those days, practice will end by 11:00 am and 

the Swim Team shall be responsible straightening any chairs, disposing of trash in trash 

receptacles and general clean-up after each practice, returning the Aquatic Facilities to 

the same condition as before the practice started. Other restrictions may apply during a 

public health emergency, such as the an endemic or a pandemic, or as otherwise required 

by the District. 

7. Except with the prior approval of the District, no Swim Team competitions may be held 

on weekends or on days that the family pool is closed, unless otherwise as permitted by 

the District.  Swim Team shall be responsible for straightening any chairs, disposing of 

trash in trash receptacles and general clean-up after each meet, returning the Aquatic 

Facilities to the same condition as before the meet started.  Other restrictions may apply 

during a public health emergency, such as an endemic or a pandemic, or as otherwise 

required by the District. 

8. No outside vendors will be allowed to sell food at any time.   

9. Swim Team practices may use all but one lane, which will remain reserved for District 

residents. 

Page 210 of 432

DRAFT



 

 12 

10. Swim Team roster must be provided to the District 15 days prior to practices beginning 

or as soon as practicable.  Roster must include all coaching staff. 

11. The District reserves the right to retain a security guard or guards for the swim meets at 

Swim Team’s expense if the District, in its sole and unrestricted discretion, deems it 

desirable. 

 

12. Swim Team shall be responsible for automobile parking on swim meet days.  Swim 

meets are expected to surpass the District’s parking lot capacity, and the Swim Team 

shall have volunteers available to manage such overflow parking.  Swim Team Members, 

visiting teams or spectators are prohibited from parking on private property. 

13. The Agreement with the District, the School Board and the Swim Team must be signed 

and provided to the District 15 days prior to practices beginning or as soon as practicable. 

14. Proof of insurance must be provided to the District prior to practices beginning or as soon 

as practicable. 

Page 211 of 432

DRAFT



 

 13 

EXHIBIT C 

WAIVER OF LIABILITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

(“ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND RELEASE”) 

I _________________________________, on behalf of my minor child _________________ (“Participant”) 

acknowledge that I have freely chosen to have my child participate in certain recreational activities (the “Activities”) 

sponsored by the Middleburg High School Swim Team (“Swim Team”) at the South Village Community Development 

District (“District”) amenity facilities (“Facilities”).  I understand that neither the Swim Team nor the Swim Team 

instructor(s) (“Instructor”) are affiliated in any way with the District and that the District does not endorse any such third 

parties, and that the District makes no representations concerning the qualifications or ability of any such third parties to 

conduct, teach, or lead the Activities.  

 

On behalf of Participant, I acknowledge that Participant willfully and voluntarily assumes and accepts sole responsibility 

for all risks related to participation in the Activities, including, but not limited to, the risks mentioned above, damage to, 

loss or theft of real or personal property, or other loss or harm of any kind or nature.  I acknowledge on behalf of 

Participant that he or she is voluntarily participating in the Activities with knowledge of the dangers involved, and 

Participant agrees to assume and accept sole responsibility for Participant’s safety and for any and all harm that may 

occur. 

 

I acknowledge on behalf of Participant that the District recommends that the Participant consult a physician prior to 

engaging in the Activities and that Participant has either had a physical examination and been given a physician’s 

approval to participate in the Activities or otherwise has elected to participate in the Activities; therefore, Participant 

assumes all risk and responsibility for participation in the Activities.  

I further acknowledge and agree that participating in the Activities may increase the Participant’s exposure to the COVID-

10 virus, or other contagions.  I acknowledge that the participant voluntarily assumes all risks associated with such 

exposure and resulting illness.  

I agree that by participating in the Activities, I will fully comply with all of District’s rules, policies and orders, which 

may be amended form time to time, or face ejection from the Facilities.  

By signing this Acknowledgment and Release, I also hereby release the District and its Supervisors, officers, staff, 

employees, agents, assigns and volunteers (“Released Parties”) from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, 

complaints, suits or other forms of liability that any of them may sustain arising out of or related to, wholly or in part by, 

my or my child(ren)’s (a) participation in the Activities, (b) failure to comply with the measures imposed by the Clay 

County School Board, the Swim Team or the District, (c) failure to comply with local, state, and federal laws and policies, 

procedures, effective guidance regarding COVID-19, and the District amenity rules and policies; or (d) any damage, 

injury, or illness caused by me or my child(ren) (together, the “Released Claims”). 

I also agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Released Parties from the Released Claims, including any and all related 

costs, attorneys’ fees, liabilities, settlements, and/or judgments. I confirm that I have carefully read this Acknowledgement 

and Release, fully understand the above conditions, and agree to its terms knowingly and voluntarily. I also confirm that I 

am the parent or legal guardian of the child(ren) named below and that I am 18 years of age or older. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this Acknowledgement and Release on this _______ day of 

_______________________, 2022.    

 

SIGNATURE: _______________________________________________  

NAME: _____________________________________________________ 

NAMES OF MINOR CHILD(REN):             

                

Page 212 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an
educationally sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field
trips supplement and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum
standards of the State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student travel activity which is approved as part of the
district's educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as
designated by the Superintendent.
Group Function Date Destination

FCCLA
State Conference
National Conference

March 23-28, 2022
July 2-July 6, 2023

Orlando, FL
Denver, CO

TSA
Leadership Training Conference
State Conference
National Conference

October 19-22, 2022
Febuary 22-26, 2023
June 28-July 2, 2023

Altamonte Springs, FL
Orlando, FL
 

FFA

Chapter President Conference
State Conference
National Conference
Sunbelt AG Expo

August 2022 (TBD)
June 19-23, 2023
October 26-29, 2022
October 18-20, 2022

Orlando, FL
Orlando, FL
Indianapolis, IN
Moultrie, GA

FBLA
State/National Fall Conference
State Conference
National Conference

November 4-6, 2021
March 11-14, 2022
June 27-June 30, 2023

Orlando, FL
Orlando, FL
Atlanta, GA

HOSA
State Conference
National Conference

April 13-16, 2023
June 21-24, 2023

Orlando, FL
Dallas, TX

Skills USA
State Conference
National Conference

April 10-13, 2023
June 19-23, 2023

Jacksonville, FL
Atlanta, GA

*Trips might require students/teachers to travel a day prior to or after conference starting/ending date.
 
 
 

Gap Analysis
Career and Technical Student Organizations (CTSO) are co-curricular organizations for CTE students such as FFA, TSA, FBLA,
HOSA, SkillsUSA, FCCLA. CTSO's extend teaching and learning through innovative programs, business and community
partnerships and leadership experiences at the school, state and national levels. CTSO's are a powerful avenue for helping our
nation address key challenges such as workforce development, student achievement, economic vitality and global
competitiveness. CTSO's are authorized by the U.S. Congress in the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education
Improvement Act.

Previous Outcomes
All out of state and overnight trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that CTSO's provide students leadership development skills as well as hands on learning through
project based activities. CTSO events expose students to new experiences which increases their engagement within their
educational experience.

Page 213 of 432

DRAFT



Strategic Plan Goal
Strategy 1.3: Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or
able to compete in the workforce.

Recommendation
The CTE Department recommends the school board approves out-of-state or overnight travel for any events on the official CTSO
state calendars.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; (904) 336-6904

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

CTE Out-of-State and Overnight Field Trips (1).pdf

Page 214 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/cte-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips-1.pdf


Page 215 of 432

DRAFT



Page 216 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Behavior Management Consultants

Description
The School Board of Clay County must provide behavioral support to meet student needs. Behavior Management Consultants
(BMC) allows the district to meet obligations under the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA), to students with significant
behavioral needs. In collaboration with district staff, BMC supports the students, teachers, and families through behavior related
services, including applied behavior analysis.

Gap Analysis
Behavior Management Consultants provide the expertise of Board Certified Behavior Analysts (BCBA) for students with the
most significant of behaviors. BMC assists in the design and implementation of behavior management plans, provides training
and coaching on Applied Behavior Analysis techniques, and assists in the development of crisis intervention plans for identified
students. BCBAs are extremely difficult to hire directly as school board employees. Contracting with Behavior Management
Consultants ensures that the district meets the IDEA requirements of a free, appropriate public education (FAPE) for all students
with disabilities.

Previous Outcomes
The district has contracted services with Behavior Management Consultants since 2014, providing assistance for students with
very complex behaviors. The staff at BMC collaborates as needed with teachers, parents, behavior specialists, mental health
professionals, agency personnel and other educators in case management, problem solving, and data collection. This organization
provides exemplary services to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Behavior Management Consultants will help meet the unique needs of students with significant behavioral needs, which will in
turn will improve the student’s academic, social, and emotional development. The district will continue to contract with Behavior
Management Consultants for students who require extensive behavioral services in the educational environment.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop Great Educators and Leaders
Strategy 1.3: Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or
able to compete in the workplace

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve Behavior Management Consultants Contract for the 2022-2023 school year.

Contact
Melanie Sanders, Director of ESE, 904-336-6866, Melanie.Sanders@myoneclay.net
Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, 904-336-6906, Heather.Teto@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The projected cost of implementing this contractual agreement is about $225,000.00.
Funding Source: 0100.5200.310.9005.0000

Review Comments

Attachments

220147 Behavior Management Consultants.pdf

Page 217 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220147-behavior-management-consultants.pdf


Page 218 of 432

DRAFT



Page 219 of 432

DRAFT



Page 220 of 432

DRAFT



Page 221 of 432

DRAFT



Page 222 of 432

DRAFT



Page 223 of 432

DRAFT



Page 224 of 432

DRAFT



Page 225 of 432

DRAFT



Page 226 of 432

DRAFT



Page 227 of 432

DRAFT



Page 228 of 432

DRAFT



Page 229 of 432

DRAFT



Page 230 of 432

DRAFT



Page 231 of 432

DRAFT



Page 232 of 432

DRAFT



Page 233 of 432

DRAFT



Page 234 of 432

DRAFT



Page 235 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Alonzo Sign Language Interpreting

Description
The School Board of Clay County must provide interpreters to meet current student needs. Students who are deaf/hard of hearing
are entitled, under the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA), to district provided interpreters in order to participate
successfully in their education. IDEA also requires school districts to arrange for an interpreter for parents who are hard of
hearing or deaf to ensure they are afforded the opportunity to participate and understand the proceedings in IEP team meetings.

Gap Analysis
Alonzo Sign Language Interpreting provides educational interpreters to facilitate communication between students who are deaf
or hard of hearing and others, including teachers, related service providers, and peers within the educational teacher/student
dialogue, and relevant sound information in the mode of communication used by the student. Educational Interpreters also help
ensure parents who are deaf or hard of hearing are afforded the opportunity to understand the proceedings in IEP team meetings.
Interpreters are extremely difficult to hire directly as school board employees. Contracting with Alonzo Sign Language
Interpreters ensures that the district meets the IDEA requirements of a free, appropriate public education (FAPE) for all students
with disabilities.

Previous Outcomes
The district has contracted services with Alonzo Sign Language Interpreting for a number of students and parents who are deaf or
hard of hearing since 2011. This organization provides exemplary service to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Educational Interpreters will help meet the unique needs of students who are deaf or hard of hearing by providing
communication access which in turn will improve the student’s cognitive, linguistic, social, and emotional development. The
district will continue to contract with Alonzo Sign Language Interpreting for students and parents who are deaf or hard of hearing
and require interpreting services in the educational environment.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop Great Educators and Leaders
Strategy 1.3: Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or
able to compete in the workforce.

Recommendation
The approval of the Independent Services Contract for the 2022-2023 with Alonzo Sign Language Interpreting, LLC.

Contact
Melanie Sanders, Director, ESE, 904-336-6866, Melanie.Sanders@myoneclay.net
Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, 904-336-6906, Heather.Teto@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The projected cost of implementing this contractual agreement is about $440,000.00. Funding Source 0100.5200.310.9005.0000

Review Comments

Attachments

220149 Alonzo Sign Language.pdf

Page 236 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220149-alonzo-sign-language.pdf


Page 237 of 432

DRAFT



Page 238 of 432

DRAFT



Page 239 of 432

DRAFT



Page 240 of 432

DRAFT



Page 241 of 432

DRAFT



Page 242 of 432

DRAFT



Page 243 of 432

DRAFT



Page 244 of 432

DRAFT



Page 245 of 432

DRAFT



Page 246 of 432

DRAFT



Page 247 of 432

DRAFT



Page 248 of 432

DRAFT



Page 249 of 432

DRAFT



Page 250 of 432

DRAFT



Page 251 of 432

DRAFT



Page 252 of 432

DRAFT



Page 253 of 432

DRAFT



Page 254 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Florida Gateway College.

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and Florida Gateway College for FGC students to participate in
internships, practicums, and observations under the direction of a certified educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns and pre-interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent
potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 25 Colleges/Universities, and this will be a new agreement with
FGC.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of interns provides teacher candidates with real-world experiences that better prepares them for the rigors of
classroom teaching.  FGC is currently requesting the placement of 1 student.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
 
Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and Florida Gateway College.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

220113 Florida Gateway College (2).pdf

Page 255 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220113-florida-gateway-college-2.pdf


Page 256 of 432

DRAFT



Page 257 of 432

DRAFT



Page 258 of 432

DRAFT



Page 259 of 432

DRAFT



Page 260 of 432

DRAFT



Page 261 of 432

DRAFT



Page 262 of 432

DRAFT



Page 263 of 432

DRAFT



Page 264 of 432

DRAFT



Page 265 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and St. Johns River State College.

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and St. Johns River State College for SJRSC students to participate in
internships, practicums, and observations under the direction of a certified educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns and pre-interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent
potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 25 Colleges/Universities, and the current agreement with SJRSC is
expiring.  This agreement is a renewal of the previous contract.  No changes have been made between the previous contract and
this renewal contract.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of interns provides teacher candidates with real-world experiences that better prepares them for the rigors of
classroom teaching.  SJRSC is currently requesting the placement of 16 students for the Fall of 2022, and based on historical
trends, we expect these numbers to increase as we get closer to the start of the school year.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
 
Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and St. Johns River State
College.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

220134 St Johns River Student Affiliation.pdf

Page 266 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220134-st-johns-river-student-affiliation.pdf


Page 267 of 432

DRAFT



Page 268 of 432

DRAFT



Page 269 of 432

DRAFT



Page 270 of 432

DRAFT



Page 271 of 432

DRAFT



Page 272 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University.

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University for LU students to participate in internships,
practicums, and observations under the direction of a certified educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns and pre-interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent
potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 25 Colleges/Universities, and the current agreement with Liberty
University is expiring.  This agreement is a renewal of the previous contract. 

Expected Outcomes
Placement of interns provides teacher candidates with real-world experiences that better prepares them for the rigors of
classroom teaching.  Liberty University is currently requesting the placement of 1 teacher candidate, however, additional
placements may take place within the contracted term.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
 
Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

220150 Liberty University.pdf

Page 273 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220150-liberty-university.pdf


Page 274 of 432

DRAFT



Page 275 of 432

DRAFT



Page 276 of 432

DRAFT



Page 277 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - 2022-2023 Clay County School Board Agreement with Flagler Health for BRAVE Program

Description
Care Connect+ is a subsidiary of Flagler Health that provides a program called B.R.A.V.E.  This program  functions as a hub for
behavioral health service referrals for Clay County District Schools. All of our mental health referrals are made to a confidential
platform that is continually monitored and managed by Care Connect+ staff.  The referrals are assessed based upon need,
geography, and insurance status to connect the student to the approporate community partner who serve students on school site.
Agreements will be in place with each of our community partners acknowledging this referral system.  The benefits to this
program include increased efficiency and efficacy in connecting our students to services.  Senate Bill 7030 requires that our
student mental health referrals are assessed within 15 days of referral and connected to services within 30 days of referral.  This
program enables an efficient method of monitoring these timelines and ensuring that students are connected with the ideal
provider for their particular needs and situation.  Care Connect+ will remain in continual contact with the Supervisor of Mental
Health and Wellness to ensure services are meeting the required timelines, as well as to remain updated on community provider
statuses in services rendered.  Clay County District Schools will be invoiced on a regular basis by Care Connect+ to provide for
any services needed for our students that are not funded by any other third party options (Medicaid, private insurance, etc.). 
Total invoiced amount will not exceed $100,000.00.  When a community partner renders such services, the agency invoices Care
Connect+ for reimbursement.  Care Connect+ provides assurance that services are being provided consistently and appropriately
before disbursement of funds. 

Gap Analysis
The agreement provides an increase in the rate of students and families who connect with mental health services through care
coordination and direct linkage with our community partners.  The overall administration of connecting and funding services to
our students is extremely time consuming and has the potiential to lack efficiency due to the lack of technological platforms that
support the work.  The particular challenge of monitoring deadlines of assessments and service connection has become a full
time position in itself that we do not currently have an allocation to meet.  Entering into this agreement enables increased 1:1
time for all mental health staff to have with students, and improves overall efficiency of the process.

Previous Outcomes
The 2021-2022 Agreement provided services by outside providers to 514 students through the BRAVE program.  Data collected
from the 2020-2021 School Year, prior to the use of the BRAVE platform, reflected 260 students were provided services by
outside providers.  This indicates that the BRAVE program implementation nearly doubled the number of students who were
able to receive mental health services from outside providers.

Expected Outcomes
This agreement will provide an increased number of students who have been referred for mental health services to be monitored
and connected to the needed assistance by releasing the district clinical staff to have additional time for direct student contact. 
This agreement will also provide an increased number of students who meet the deadlines of assessment within 15 days and
service connection within 30 by the collaboration and oversight that the efficient platform enables.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Establish a repectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all
Strategy 3.2: Develop systems and processes that focus on developing the whole child

Recommendation
Recommend School Board approval of plan.

Page 278 of 432

DRAFT



Contact
Heather McDonald, Supervisor for Mental Health and Wellness
904-336-6900 heather.mcdonald@myoneclay.net
Laura Fogarty, Director of Climate and Culture
904-336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$100,000.00

Review Comments

Attachments

22-23 Flagler Hospital BRAVE Agenda Submission.pdf

Page 279 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-flagler-hospital-brave-agenda-submission.pdf


Page 280 of 432

DRAFT



Page 281 of 432

DRAFT



Page 282 of 432

DRAFT



Page 283 of 432

DRAFT



Page 284 of 432

DRAFT



Page 285 of 432

DRAFT



Page 286 of 432

DRAFT



Page 287 of 432

DRAFT



Page 288 of 432

DRAFT



Page 289 of 432

DRAFT



Page 290 of 432

DRAFT



Page 291 of 432

DRAFT



Page 292 of 432

DRAFT



Page 293 of 432

DRAFT



Page 294 of 432

DRAFT



Page 295 of 432

DRAFT



Page 296 of 432

DRAFT



Page 297 of 432

DRAFT



Page 298 of 432

DRAFT



Page 299 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Approve the 2022-2023 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J. Gallagher
& Co. (broker)

Description
Annual renewal of the District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance policies

Gap Analysis
Annually, the District undergoes a comprehensive analysis of its current insurable property and personnel.  Our broker (Arthur J.
Gallagher) obtains competitive quotes based on current insurance trends and needs for the next fiscal year.  The goal is to obtain
the best coverage possible while maintaining a manageable budget for the coverage.  This year, the policy includes renewal for
Property, General Liability, Auto Liability, School Leaders, Employment Practices Liability, Worker's Compensation, Crime,
Cyber Risk, Boiler & Machinery, Storage Tank Liability, and Active Assailant Liability.
The overall cost is a 21% increase of $287,305 from the prior year's premium.  The increase is primarily due to the rise in
property values, payroll expenditures, and active assailant premiums.

Previous Outcomes
It is a standard operating practice to negotiate and present insurance renewals for approval based on needs, trends, and financial
availability.
2015-2016 = $1,200,697
2016-2017 - $1,040,615
2017-2018 - $1,045,627
2018-2019  $1,095,983
2019-2020   $1,160,753
2020-2021   $1,229,394  
2021-2022   $1,347,185
2022-2023   $1,634,490 proposed

Expected Outcomes
To approve the Superintendent's recommendation to renew the 2022-2023 Property & Casualty Insurance Program option #1 as
presented.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
To obtain the School Board's approval of the District's Property, Liability, and Active Assailant insurance renewal policies,
option #1 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs 336-6721  susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Estimated at  $1,634,490  funded through by Self Insurance Program

Review Comments

Attachments

Gallagher Insurance Renewal Summary 2022-2023.pdf

Page 300 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/gallagher-insurance-renewal-summary-2022-2023.pdf


ajg.com
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.

Executive Summary
Insurance Renewal  
June 30th, 2022-2023
Arthur J Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.

Jori Van der Voort | Area Senior Vice President
jori_van_der_voort@ajg.com | 305.639.3116
June 15th, 2022

Clay County School 
District

Page 301 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved. 

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum Page 302 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

12

Your Team
Your Gallagher team is a true partner. We have the expertise to understand your business and we’re here to service and 
stay alongside you, every step of the way.

Name/Title Phone Email Role
Primary Service Team
Jori Van der Voort, ARM
Area Senior Vice President

305.639.3116 Jori_Van_der_Voort@ajg.com Team Leader

Natalie Delgado
Client Service Associate Senior

305.639.3146 Natalie_Delgado@ajg.com Client Service Associate
Sr. 

Claims Advocacy
Scott Clark, AAI
Area Senior Vice President, Claim Advocate 
for Southeast Region

561.998.6815
Scott_Clark@ajg.com Property Claim  Advocate

Senior Resources

Zeb Holt
Regional Executive Vice President –Florida

305.639.3113 Zeb_Holt@ajg.com AJG Leadership

Dave Marcus, ARM-P
Area Chairman

561.998.6800 Dave_Marcus@ajg.com Senior Management

Page 303 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

13

State of the Market

The big picture

• Like 2018 and 2019, 2020 was a challenging market overall. Our clients faced significant difficulties trying to find 
coverage, with capacity issues and significant rate increases—for some clients as much as 50%–100% 
increases, often multiple years in a row.

• A confluence of factors challenged the industry, including 

social inflation—the trend of rising insurance costs as a result of increased litigation

plaintiff-friendly judgements and high jury awards 

increased storm activity and pandemic losses

carriers’ ability to offset these results through investment income remained a challenge due to the lower 
interest rate environment.

• Rate increases are moderating for some lines. Three years of carriers raising rates, restricting limits and 
increasing deductibles have generally made the market more attractive to new business.

Property 

• Between wildfires, civil commotion and major freeze events, carriers responded to 2020 and 2021 events with 
increased deductibles, reduced capacity, and changes in coverage. For the third straight year, carriers obtained 
significant rate increases across their Property portfolios.

• Less-modeled and un-modeled risks continued to plague the Property marketplace, such as wildfires, flood and 
convective storms.

• This past year was very active in climate-driven claims, including winter storm Uri in February, which many 
meteorologists claim was a one-in-1,000-year event.

• Hurricane Ida, which made landfall in August, caused significant damage in the Southeast and Northeastern 
United States. 

• 2020 and 2021 set the top records for the most separate billion-dollar+ weather and climate disaster in the 
United States at 22 events in 2020 and 20 events in 2021. 

• The median increase in Q3 2021 for Property policies was 9.1% in Q3 2021, with 85% taking an increase.

Page 304 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

14

• There are still challenging renewals, especially for challenging occupancies and catastrophe-exposed 
businesses.

• Carriers are scrutinizing their clients’ statements of value, demanding in many cases that values be raised as 
there have been huge discrepancies between insured values and the actual replacement cost at time of loss. 

Excess Liability

• General Liability continues be a struggle in certain geographic areas of the country due to sovereign immunity 
statutes and statewide litigation and claims trends. 

Available limits are being slashed and premiums continue to increase 5-15% or more. 

Excess limits are being cut by 50% or more.

• Auto Liability rates are still not keeping pace with the increases in claims frequency and severity.

• Sexual Abuse and Molestation Liability coverage continues to be very difficult to place. 

Limits are being slashed, premiums are increasing at a very high rate and client retentions are soaring.

• School Leaders Errors & Omissions and Employment Practices Liability – the marketplace continues to 
harden.  

Federal claims continue to drive many of the losses in these coverages. 

In addition to seeing nominal rate increases, we are seeing some carriers implement new restrictions. 

Excess Workers Compensation continues to be a challenge for Florida Public Entities.

• There are a limited number of carriers that will write this coverage for public sector.

• Rate increases have been in the 5-10% range (unless losses dictate otherwise).

• Retentions and premium continue to rise primarily due to medical advances, improving mortality patterns for 
patients with serious injuries, and increasing prevalence and cost of home health care.

• Notable rise in “Mega” claims, classified as claims over $3 million.

Cyber 

• The ransomware and cybersecurity risk trends we saw in 2020 continued to plague the Cyber insurance market 
throughout the first three quarters of 2021. 

• Cyber claim frequency and severity continued spiraling upward, which led to a swift response from the Cyber 
insurance market. Carriers imposed significant limitations of capacity, narrowed the scope of coverage terms, 
heightened underwriting scrutiny and significantly increased rates. 

Page 305 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

15

• Insurance products will reflect decreasing carrier appetites to fully cover ransomware costs, as they push for 
cost-sharing in the form of ransomware coinsurance and sublimits. 

• Nearly all carriers now require attestation of at least some preventive controls, which likely include multifactor 
authentication, remote desktop protocol, data backup practices, segregation of networks, encryption, patch 
management, privileged account management, employee training and a host of other preventive measures. 

• Rate increases were experienced across most industry sectors, with larger companies subject to greater 
increases and higher underwriting scrutiny. 

• Companies without best-in-class data security are likely to see rate increases in the 100–200% range, and in 
some cases as high as 400%. Even those that comply with all underwriting required security controls are seeing 
increases in excess of 75%. 

• Most Cyber insurance buyers are feeling the impact through time consuming and complex renewals, with many 
obtaining less coverage at a higher cost. 

• The Cyber underwriting community has responded to 2020 and 2021 loss data and Cyber claim trends with a 
laser focus on data security controls when evaluating risks. 

• We expect even greater underwriting scrutiny of cyber security controls in the Cyber insurance market 
throughout the remainder of 2021, with capacity continuing to shrink. 

• Rate hikes show no real signs of leveling off in the near term. 

• This will likely force insureds to offset these costs by assuming greater self-insured retentions and taking an even 
greater role in actively managing cyber risk.

Wind Modeling
1. Concentration and Geographic Location of Property: Clay County School District has a little over $1 billion of insured 

values concentrated in Northeast Florida.

2. Values Exposed and Probable Maximum Loss (PML): Each year we analyze the School District’s property schedule, 
in terms of windstorm exposure using the RMS model. This year the model projects a 250-year PML (the value 
observed by insurance companies) of  $35.0 million. Thanks to the efforts of District staff, we have been able to 
improve the data used by the computer models over the years, and this has had a positive impact on your modeling 
results, and your insurance premiums.

While the models are not predictive of the future, their results tell us that insurers expect the most of the  $20 million 
of Named Windstorm coverage being provided to be exhausted in the event of a moderate to severe hurricane. We 
recommend that the District consider purchasing additional Named Windstorm coverage.

Page 306 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

16

2022 Hurricane Modeling Results

RMS 18.0
Critical Prob. Return Period Ground Up Gross Loss

0.01% 10,000 $188,769,782 $155,898,385
0.10% 1,000 $77,937,935 $60,446,443
0.20% 500 $54,001,194        $40,520,487
0.40% 250 $34,983,552         $24,632,263
1.00% 100 $16,457,469    $9,421,535

AAL $673,905       $365,317
Please note that these are only estimates; an actual event could cause a loss that deviates significantly from these values.

Top 5 Key Drivers of Loss

Address AAL
Flood 
Zone

Distance to 
Coast (mi.)

TIV

3750 State Road 220, Middleburg, FL 
32068 $20,247 X 30.85

$41,922,452

5400 Pine Avenue, Orange Park, FL, 
32003 $13,148 X 19.23

$3,568,937

900 SW Orchid Avenue, Keystone 
Heights, FL, 32656 $9,283 X    44.97 $4,087,436

2020 Thunderbolt Road, Orange Park, 
FL, 32003 $8,127 X    22.91 $21,089,142

5400 Pine Avenue, Orange Park, FL, 
32003 $7,966 X 19.23

$3,271,263

Glossary of Terms/Acronyms

Risk Management Solutions (RMS): Catastrophe Modeling Software

Average Annual Loss (AAL): the annualized estimate of loss to a representative unit of exposure from a broad range of 
modeled catastrophe events;

Return Period: the expected length of time between recurrences of two events with similar characteristics. The return 
period can also refer to specific level of loss;

Probable Maximum Loss (PML): estimate of the maximum loss on a particular risk as a result of a single event, 
assessed with due care and taking into account all risk elements;

Ground Up Loss: the amount of loss sustained before deductions, underlying coverage and reinsurance are applied.

Gross Loss: the insurer’s loss after deductibles, attachment point(s), and limits are applied, but before any reinsurance.

Page 307 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

17

Renewal Exposures

Property Exposures 2021-2022 2022-2023 Diff
Building/Walkways and Portables $      978,441,024 $   1,084,414,060 10.83%
Miscellaneous $          3,058,405 $           3,058,405 0.00%
Personal Property (Furniture & 
Equipment) $        27,677,756 $         27,677,756 0.00%
Software $          3,073,284 $           3,073,284 0.00%
Audiovisual $                93,244 $                 93,244 0.00%
Vehicles $        28,179,517 $         28,179,517 0.00%
Seats & Scoreboards $          3,357,870 $           3,357,870 0.00%
Total $  1,043,881,101 $   1,149,854,137 10.15%

Casualty Exposures 2021-2022 2022-2023 Diff
GOE $   316,688,483 $    333,812,610 5%
Total Payroll $   217,591,524 $    232,221,999 7%
Students 37,720 36,831 -2%
Vehicles 615 629 2%
Employees 5,178 5,119 -1%

Page 308 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

18

Property Historical Review  

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Named 

Windstor
m Limit

$11,000,000 $11,000,000 $11,000,000 $11,000,000 $13,500,000 $13,500,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 20,000,000

Named 
Windstor

m 
Deductibl

e

7.5% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

10% - 
$1,000,000 
Minimum

Total 
Excess 

Property 
Premiums

$807,250 $753,256 $610,000 $560,000 $464,254 $468,000 $507,619 $576,422 $657,960 $709,441 $898,004 

Total 
Insured
Values

1,071,388,873 1,046,329,082   981,174,051 1,109,446,339 908,967,381 909,008,284 984,693,288 1,007,091,790 1,043,019,847 1,043,881,101 1,149,854,136

Property 
Rate 0.0753 0.0720 0.0622 0.0505 0.0511 0.0515 0.0516 0.0572 0.0631 0.0677 0.0781

Page 309 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

19

2022 Program Structure

lay County School District 19
Please note that coverages are not drawn to scale and actual policy verbiage should be consulted for coverage terms and conditions  

Equipment 
Breakdown

Cyber LiabilityWorkers’ Compensation/ 
Employers’ Liability  

Public Entity Liability   

US Specialty

Work Comp Statutory
Employers Liability 

$1,000,000 Chubb 

$1,000,000
Limit

Travelers Insurance 
Co.

$250,000,000
Any One Accident 

Named Windstorm Only
$4M XS $16M

Second Excess Layer 
$35M XS $16M 

First Excess Layer
$15M XS $1M

Excess Property $51MM All 
Risks $16M Named 

Windstorm  

Lloyds of London
$900,000

Per Occurrence for Property  

$800,000 per Occurrence for GL 
& AL 

$4,800,000 per Occurrence for 
GL & AL Out of State

$900,000 for Employee Benefits, 
Law Enforcement EPL & Sexual 

Harassment Liability

$800,000 Sexual Abuse  

$1,000,000 Each Claim for E&O 

$100,000 Each Claim
Crime Liability

$100,000 Property SIR

$50,000 Auto Damage  SIR

$200,000  Auto Liability & 
General Liability SIR

$100,000 E&O, Employee 
Benefits, Law Enforcement  SIR

$200,000 Sexual Abuse 

$25,000 Crime SIR

$500,000 SIR Per 
Occurrence 

$10,000 Deductible

Active Assailant 
Liability 

Ironshore

$1,000,000
Limit

$10,000 Deductible

Storage Tank 
Liability 

$250,000 USTs / 
$15,000 Loc 3/ $5,000 

ASTs Deductible

$100,000 SIR Per Occurrence 
(except 10% Named Wind) Storm 

Markel

$1,000,000
Limit

$250,000 SIR 

Lloyds of London 
$900,000 

Per Occurrence  

Page 310 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

20

2022 Premium Summary

Page 311 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

21

Thank You for Your Business
We have enjoyed our partnership and appreciate the continued time, support and confidence you have placed in us as your risk 
management team. This past year has been successful as evidenced by your renewal outcome. Your total cost of risk is being 
impacted favorably and our strategy for this upcoming renewal continues to focus on ways to improve this positive impact on 
your profitability. Thank you.

Legal Disclaimer

Gallagher provides insurance and risk management advice that is tailored to our clients’ risk transfer needs. Our review can include evaluation of 
insurance premium, risk transfer options, finance agreements, insurance limits, indemnification obligations, and contracts to ascertain appropriate 
coverage. We do emphasize that any risk management advice, insurance analysis, and limited review of contract terms and conditions, is only 
provided from an insurance/risk management perspective and is NOT legal advice. We do not provide legal advice and always recommend that our 
clients seek advice from legal counsel to become fully apprised of all legal implications from their business transactions.

Page 312 of 432

DRAFT



Clay County School District
2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  

18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum

22

Page 313 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-23

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2022-2023 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

22 23 Allocation Summary - June 30, 2022.pdf

Page 314 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-allocation-summary-june-30-2022_3.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS   

2022-2023 SUMMARY 

Board Meeting, June 30, 2022

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2022-2023 ACTIONS

General Funds

ROE-0541 0.4 Support Facilitator Program Needs $19,000 $6,131 $25,131

ESE-9005 1.0 Occupational Therapist Program Needs $54,000 $17,426 $71,426

SIP-9009 0.5

Supervisor of School Improv./Prof Dev. Assess. - Supervisor II 

(100/6300) Program Needs ($42,120) ($13,592) ($55,712)

SIP-9009 0.5

Supervisor of School Improv./Prof Dev. Assess. - Supervisor II 

(100/6400) Program Needs ($42,120) ($13,592) ($55,712)

SIP-9009 0.5 Director of School Improv/Prof Dev. Assess (100/6300) Program Needs $46,575 $15,030 $61,605

SIP-9009 0.5 Director of School Improv/Prof Dev. Assess (100/6400) Program Needs $46,575 $15,030 $61,605

SUP-9016 0.8 Executive Director of the Clay Education Foundation Program Needs ($45,360) ($14,638) ($59,998)

SUP-9016 0.2

Executive Director of the Clay Education Foundation - invoiced 

reimbursement Program Needs ($11,340) ($3,659) ($15,000)

TOTAL: $25,209 $8,135 $33,345

General Funds (1248)

HR-9060 1.6 Teacher on Assignment - invoiced reimbursement Program Needs $76,000 $24,525 $100,525

TOTAL: $76,000 $24,525 $100,525

General Funds (Foundation Partnerships) (1249) 

SUP-9018 0.53 President/CEO of the Clay Education Foundation Program Needs $40,017 $12,914 $52,931

SUP-9018 0.47

President/CEO of the Clay Education Foundation - invoiced 

reimbursement Program Needs $35,600 $11,488 $47,089

SUP-9018 1.0

Vice President of the Clay Education Foundation - invoiced 

reimbursement Program Needs $50,000 $16,135 $66,135

TOTAL: $125,617 $40,537 $166,154

Mental Health (1173)

CC-9004 1.0 Mental Health Counselor - 12 Month Program Needs $63,010 $20,333 $83,343

CC-9004 1.0  Mental Health Counselor - 10 Month Program Needs $47,500 $15,328 $62,828

TOTAL: $110,510 $35,662 $146,172

Food and Nutrition Services (410/7600)

AES-0591 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

CEB-0071 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

CHE-0411 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

CGE-0601 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

DOE-0641 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

DIS-0261 1.0 FNS Manager Self Contained Sci (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

FIE-0521 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

GPE-0232 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

KHE-0301 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

LAE-0451 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

LES-0352 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

MRE-0511 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

MBE-0271 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

MCE-0381 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

OVE-0621 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($38,449) ($12,407) ($50,856)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

Pending Board Approval 06/30/2022

Page 315 of 432

DRAFT



PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS   

2022-2023 SUMMARY 

Board Meeting, June 30, 2022

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

OPE-0201 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

PES-0471 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

POE-0651 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

ROE-0541 1.0 FNS Manager Self Contained Sci (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

RVE-0401 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

SBJ-0331 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

SLE-0631 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

SPC-0571 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

TBE-0531 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

TES-0501 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.50 hours) Program Needs ($38,449) ($12,407) ($50,856)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base SBI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $38,449 $12,407 $50,856

WEC-0241 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

WES-0491 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite SAT I (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

GCJ-0021 1.0 Satellite Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

LAJ-0481 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

LJH-0351 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($38,449) ($12,407) ($50,856)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base SBI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $38,449 $12,407 $50,856

OLJ-0661 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($34,752) ($11,214) ($45,966)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Self Contained SCI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $34,752 $11,214 $45,966

OPJ-0361 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($38,449) ($12,407) ($50,856)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base SBI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $38,449 $12,407 $50,856

WJH-0371 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($38,449) ($12,407) ($50,856)

1.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base SBI (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $38,449 $12,407 $50,856

CHS-0341 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($39,743) ($12,825) ($52,568)

1.0

Senior High Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base 

SBIA (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $39,743 $12,825 $52,568

FIH-0551 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($39,743) ($12,825) ($52,568)

1.0

Senior High Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base 

SBIA (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $39,743 $12,825 $52,568

KHH-0311 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($39,743) ($12,825) ($52,568)

1.0

Senior High Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base 

SBIA (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $39,743 $12,825 $52,568

MHS-0391 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($38,819) ($12,527) ($51,346)

1.0

Senior High Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base 

SCIB (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $38,819 $12,527 $51,346

OHS-0661 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($38,819) ($12,527) ($51,346)

1.0

Senior High Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base 

SCIB (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $38,819 $12,527 $51,346

OPH-0252 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($39,743) ($12,825) ($52,568)

1.0 Senior High Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base Program Needs $39,743 $12,825 $52,568

RHS-0431 1.0 Cafeteria Manager (7.5 hours) Program Needs ($39,743) ($12,825) ($52,568)

RHS-0431 1.0 Senior High Food and Nutrition Services Mgr-Satellite Base Program Needs $39,743 $12,825 $52,568

RHS-0431 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (5.75 hours) Program Needs ($13,276) ($4,284) ($17,560)

RHS-0431 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (5.25 hours) Program Needs $12,121 $3,912 $16,033

RHS-0431 2.0 Cafeteria Assistant (3.25 hours) Program Needs ($15,007) ($4,843) ($19,850)

RHS-0431 2.0 Cafeteria Assistant (3.50 hours) Program Needs $16,162 $5,215 $21,377

FNS-9110 2.0 Cafeteria Manager, Mobile Food Truck (7.5 hrs) Program Needs ($28,652) ($9,246) ($37,898)

FNS-9110 2.0 Food and Nutrition Services Mgr/Food Truck Satellite SCI (7.5 hrs)Program Needs $28,652 $9,246 $37,898

FNS-9110 8.0 School Food Service Manager-Intern (7.5 hrs) Program Needs ($27,358) ($8,828) ($36,186)

FNS-9110 8.0 Food and Nutrition Services Manager Intern (7.5 hrs) Program Needs $27,358 $8,828 $36,186

TOTAL: $2,403 $775 $3,178

Pending Board Approval 06/30/2022

Page 316 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Monthly Financial Reports for May, 2022

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending May 31, 2022.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for May,
2022.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

May 2022 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

May 2022 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

CONTRACTS 50 Thousand and Greater.xlsx.pdf

Page 317 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2022-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greaterxlsx_1.pdf


Page 318 of 432

DRAFT



Page 319 of 432

DRAFT



Page 320 of 432

DRAFT



Page 321 of 432

DRAFT



Page 322 of 432

DRAFT



Page 323 of 432

DRAFT



Page 324 of 432

DRAFT



Page 325 of 432

DRAFT



Page 326 of 432

DRAFT



Page 327 of 432

DRAFT



Page 328 of 432

DRAFT



Page 329 of 432

DRAFT



Page 330 of 432

DRAFT



Page 331 of 432

DRAFT



Page 332 of 432

DRAFT



Page 333 of 432

DRAFT



Page 334 of 432

DRAFT



Page 335 of 432

DRAFT



$50,000 - $100,000 Contracts "Signed" by Superintendent for BAD monthly BOARD Financial Report
CONTRACT # SUBMITTED BY DEPT COST PO # VENDOR

210117 B Montoro 9006 $51,242.50 P2110205 Voyager Sopris Learning (LETRS)
210123 R Widdowson 9106 $54,000.00 P2202974 Pear Deck

210135 K Lawrence 9004

Amendment for 9,000
+60,000 on 200146 = 
+30,000 on 210091 = 

Total $99,000

P2101306 Family Services and Resources Center - Amendment 2

210140 B Ellis 9023 $50,000.00 P2104418 North Florida Building Code Services - Amendment 1 Renew 210040
210141 K Lawrence 9005 $50,000.00 P2202136 Family Services & Resource Center 
210144 K Lawrence 9004 $50,000.00 P2202135 First Coast Behavior Solutions
210145 B Montoro 9015 $61,588.00 P2201445 Voyager Sopis Learning Inc. (LETRS)
220010 L Fogarty 9004 $60,000.00 P2202137 Flagler Health

$50,000 - $100,000 Contracts "Signed" by Superintendent for BAD monthly BOARD Financial Report
CONTRACT # SUBMITTED BY DEPT COST PO # VENDOR

210129 B Ellis 9023 $53,305.92 P2202486 Dude Solutions - Capital Predictor Software  {School Dude}

220025 M Sanders 9005 $52,000.00 P2203541 First Coast Mobile Audiology

220038 M Sanders 9005 $90,000.00 P2204339 Family Services & Resource Center

220040 E Caren 9040 $93,818.76 P2204965 KnowBe4

$50,000 - $100,000 Contracts "Signed" by Superintendent for BAD monthly BOARD Financial Report

220065 K Lawrence 9252  Receiving $1,039,784.
No PO

This is SEDNET
Income

Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 104

220086 E Caren 9040 $99,300.00 P2206875 Onix Networking / Bettercloud 

Page 336 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Budget Amendment Report for May 31, 2022

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for May 2022 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Amendment May 2022.pdf

Page 337 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-may-2022.pdf


Page 338 of 432

DRAFT



Page 339 of 432

DRAFT



Page 340 of 432

DRAFT



Page 341 of 432

DRAFT



Page 342 of 432

DRAFT



Page 343 of 432

DRAFT



Page 344 of 432

DRAFT



Page 345 of 432

DRAFT



Page 346 of 432

DRAFT



Page 347 of 432

DRAFT



Page 348 of 432

DRAFT



Page 349 of 432

DRAFT



Page 350 of 432

DRAFT



Page 351 of 432

DRAFT



Page 352 of 432

DRAFT



Page 353 of 432

DRAFT



Page 354 of 432

DRAFT



Page 355 of 432

DRAFT



Page 356 of 432

DRAFT



Page 357 of 432

DRAFT



Page 358 of 432

DRAFT



Page 359 of 432

DRAFT



Page 360 of 432

DRAFT



Page 361 of 432

DRAFT



Page 362 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2022

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of May, 2022.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2022 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion Report June 2022.pdf

Page 363 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-june-2022.pdf


Depreciation

06/30/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0021 GREEN COVE SPRINGS JUNIOR HIGH

1,579.00 1,579.00MIXER: VIDEO 4 CHANNEL - EDIRO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 12/18/200800098353
1,199.00 1,199.00CAMCORDER: MINI DV-PANASONIC A Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 10/22/200910000119

2,778.002,778.00

LCTN 0301 KEYSTONE HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY
2,699.96 2,699.96MOWER RIDING 20HP 46 " HUSQVAR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 08/19/199700066855
3,239.10 2,159.40VEHICLE:UTILITY LANDMASTER LM2 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 10/23/201415000401

4,859.365,939.06

LCTN 0341 CLAY HIGH SCHOOL
7,669.33 7,669.33SERVER: COLD FOOD-COLORPOINT 5 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 12/15/201112000380

7,669.337,669.33

LCTN 0391 MIDDLEBURG HIGH
1,618.00 1,618.00COPIER: DIGITAL W/CABINET - RI Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/03/2022 03/22/200700091807

1,618.001,618.00

LCTN 0531 THUNDERBOLT ELEMENTARY
1,479.00 1,479.00PACER:LARGE WITH ACCESSORIES Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/03/2022 06/26/200300078863

1,479.001,479.00

LCTN 0551 FLEMING ISLAND HIGH SCHOOL
3,400.00 3,400.00PACKAGE:HIGH SCHOOL HIGH JUMP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/03/2022 10/09/200300079422

3,400.003,400.00

LCTN 9005 EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION
2,005.56 2,005.56CART: BRETFORD POWERSYNC FOR I Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 05/12/201111001063

2,005.562,005.56

LCTN 9007 K12 ACADEMIC SERVICES
1,082.95 842.29LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE 7370 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 02/23/201717000448

842.291,082.95

LCTN 9021 MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT
1,101.00 1,101.00CHASSIS/MONITOR/KEYBOARD - DEL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 01/27/200500080439

1,101.001,101.00

06/30/202206/01/2022Date Range 110:07:3906/03/2022

Page 364 of 432

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 9110 FOOD & NUTRITION SERVICES

2,999.00 2,999.00REFRIGERATOR REACH-IN Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 03/25/199600062386
3,050.52 3,050.52FREEZER: REACH-IN DOUBLE DOOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/03/2022 05/22/200800087984

6,049.526,049.52

33,122.42
Totals for Deletion Report

31,802.06

Note:
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
0.00

Total Furniture
33,122.42

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

06/30/202206/01/2022Date Range 210:07:3906/03/2022

Page 365 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - BID to be Awarded

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Epoxy Floor Services – County Wide Bid #22-F-239:  Contract Period is for a two (2) year period from July 1, 2022 through
June 30, 2024 with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year contract periods upon mutual agreement, in writing.
Bid established for the purchase of qualified labor, equipment and material to perform but not limited to the following services: 
make repairs, resurface existing floor systems, install new floor systems, install exterior deck systems over concrete and exposed
aggregate surfaces, resurface lab countertop and resurface mechanical rooms on an as needed basis. The vendor awarded is the
lowest, most responsive and responsible qualified bidder meeting specifications.  
b. Contract Services for Electrical Construction – County Wide Bid #22-F-240.  Contract Period is for a three (3) year period
from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 with the option to renew for one (1) additional three (3) year contract period upon
mutual agreement, in writing.  Bid established for the purchase of qualified labor, equipment and material to perform electrical
construction that includes install, repair, and connection existing and/or new construction and relocatable classrooms to include
but not limited to electrical, fire alarm, data, telephone, intercom and video connections as needed County Wide.  The vendors
awarded are the three (3) lowest, most responsive and responsible licensed contractors meeting specifications. 
c. Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants Contracted Operations - County Wide Bid #22-MA-324:  Contract Period is for a one
(1) year period from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year contract
periods upon mutual agreement, in writing. Bid established for the purchase of qualified labor, equipment and material to
perform required on-site monitoring, reporting, record keeping and sampling services at designated water and wastewater
treatment plants county-wide. One bid was received and evaluated by the Purchasing Department to be a responsive &
responsible Bid. The Maintenance Department determined the bidder was qualified to do the work as specified. Negotiations
resulted in terms that were in the best interest of the School Board and mutually agreeable for the vendor. The vendor awarded
was the sole responsive and responsible bidder meeting specifications.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved Bid will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services and products
to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Page 366 of 432

DRAFT



Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Epoxy Floor Services – County Wide Bid #22-F-239: 

Ronald Lance Tile & Resinous Systems LLC PO Box 1097, Fairfield FL 32634-
b. Contract Services for Electrical Construction – County Wide Bid #22-F-240:

Award the three (3) lowest, from low bidder to high bidder for projects anticipated not to exceed $24,999.00 / All awarded
contractors shall be solicited to submit a Sealed Quotes for projects anticipated to exceed $25,000.00    

First Low Bidder: Parks Electric Service, Inc., PO Box 326, Middleburg, FL 32050-
Second Low Bidder: T & M Electric of Clay County, LLC, 200 College Drive, Orange Park, FL 32065-
Third Low Bidder: Premier Communications Group, Inc., 110 Cumberland Park Dr. Suite 109, St. Augustine, FL 32095-

c. Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants Contracted Operations - County Wide Bid #22-MA-324:
Two Fold Water Engineering, Inc., PO Box 767, Melrose, FL, 32666-

 

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Epoxy Floor Services – County Wide Bid #22-F-239:  The total estimated expenditure for the two (2) year contract is
$100,000. Estimated annual spend of $50,000 for 2022-23, and $50,000 for 2023-24 from General and Capital Revenue.

b. Contract Services for Electrical Construction – County Wide Bid #22-F-240:  The total estimated expenditure for the three (3)
year contract is $210,000. Estimated annual spend of $70,000 for 2022-23, $70,000 for 2023-24, and $70,000 for 2024-25 from
General and Capital Revenue.

c. Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants Contracted Operations - County Wide Bid #22-MA-324:  The total estimated
expenditure for the one (1) year contract is $120,000.00 from General Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 367 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a.  Fresh Delivered Produce - County Wide Bid #20-SFS-09:  Contract Period is August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023. The
contract period is for one (1) year and is the second of three (3) renewal options. This renewal will enumerate supplemental terms
provided by Gordon Foods, revised by the District, into the contract documents. 

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board-approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the Vendor to continue providing quality services and products at the same terms and
conditions as when the original Bid was awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a.  Fresh Delivered Produce - County Wide Bid #20-SFS-09:

Gordon Food Service, 1410 Gordon Food Service, Plant City, FL 33563-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email:

Financial Impact
a.  Fresh Delivered Produce - County Wide Bid #20-SFS-09: The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract
renewal is $1,500,000.00 from School Food Service Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 368 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - 2022-2023 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County, Florida; and Town of Orange
Park and the Town of Orange Park Police Department.

Description
Proposed funding and contract options to meet the requirements of the Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety
Act,Ch. 2018-3. The draft agreement between the Town of Orange Park School Resource Officer (SRO) program shall include
one full time police officer at each of the three schools within the city boundaries for Grove Park Elementary School, Orange
Park Elementary School and  Orange Park  Junior High for the 2022-2023 academic year.
 

Gap Analysis
The Town of Orange Park  has contracted with the Clay County District Schools to provide a School Resource Officer at the
three schools within their municipality for the school year 2022-2023. The Town of Orange park will continue (with the school
system) to enhance the connectedness between the local Police Department and the families of students living in Orange Park
attending one of the three schools.
 

Previous Outcomes
During the 2022-2023 school year the Town of Orange Park Police Department planned and implemented Drug Abuse
Resistance Education (“DARE”) in collaboration with District personnel. The Town of Orange Park Police Department was also
successful in launching a pedestrian safety program at Grove Park Elementary, Orange Park Elementary and Orange Park Junior
High.
 

Expected Outcomes
The presence of the SRO’s on the three campuses will strengthen relationships between the local Police Department, students,
and families in the community. This will result in higher quality interactions within the neighborhoods creating a more cohesive
and secure campus environment. Students will continue to be educated on the law and illegal activities. The number of
aggressive and violent conduct referrals is expected to decline overall.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.  
 

Recommendation
Approve the agreement between the Town of Orange Park Police Department and School Board of Clay County that is
substantially similar to the one attached.
 

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, 904-336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police 904-336-0101, kenneth.wagner@myoneclayspd.net

Financial Impact
$210,801.00 Total - (12) installments for the School Resource Officers.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 369 of 432

DRAFT



220142 Town of Orange Park PD MOU - 6.30.22 Board Agenda (1).pdf

Page 370 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220142-town-of-orange-park-pd-mou-63022-board-agenda-1.pdf


Page 371 of 432

DRAFT



Page 372 of 432

DRAFT



Page 373 of 432

DRAFT



Page 374 of 432

DRAFT



Page 375 of 432

DRAFT



Page 376 of 432

DRAFT



Page 377 of 432

DRAFT



Page 378 of 432

DRAFT



Page 379 of 432

DRAFT



Page 380 of 432

DRAFT



Page 381 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C29 - 2022-2023  School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County, Florida; City of Green Cove
Springs Florida; and Green Cove Springs Police Department.

Description
Proposed funding and contract options to meet the requirements of the Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety
Act,Ch. 2018-3. The draft agreement between the City of Green Cove Springs, the Green Cove Springs Police Department
(GCSPD) School Resource Officer (SRO) program shall include one full time police officer at each of the two schools within the
city boundaries for Charles E. Bennett and Green Cove Springs Junior High for the 2022-2023 academic year.The City of Green
Cove Springs Police Department Dispatch Center and four communications officers, Green Cove Springs Police Department,
which will meet all the criteria set forth in, Green Cove Springs Police Department.
 

Gap Analysis
The City of Green Cove Springs has contracted with the Clay County District Schools to provide a School Resource Officer at
the two schools within their municipality for the school year 2022-2023. The City of Green Cove Springs will continue (with the
school system) to enhance the connectedness between the local Police Department and the families of students living in Green
Cove Springs attending one of the two schools.
 

Previous Outcomes
During the 2022-2023 school year the Green Cove Springs Police Department planned and implemented Drug Abuse Resistance
Education (“DARE”) in collaboration with District personnel. The Green Cove Springs Police Department was also successful in
launching a pedestrian safety program at Charles E. Bennett and Green Cove Springs Junior High.
 

Expected Outcomes
The presence of the SRO’s on the two campuses will strengthen relationships between the local Police Department, students and
families, in the community. Resulting in higher quality interactions within the neighborhoods creating a more cohesive and
secure campus environment. Students will continue to be educated on  the law and illegal activities within the number of
aggressive and violent conduct referrals overall is expected to decline.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 
 

Recommendation
Approve the agreement between the Green Cove Springs Police Department and School Board of Clay County that is
substantially similar to the one attached.
 

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, 904-366-6853
Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police 904-336-0101

Financial Impact
$146,050.66 to be paid out in (12)  installments for School Resource Officers 2022-2023
$202,037.33 to be paid out in (12)  installments for (4) Dispatchers for GCSPD 2022-2023

Page 382 of 432

DRAFT



Review Comments

Attachments

220141 City Of Green Cove Springs PD MOU  - 6.30.22 Board Agenda.pdf

Page 383 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220141-city-of-green-cove-springs-pd-mou-63022-board-agenda.pdf


Page 384 of 432

DRAFT



Page 385 of 432

DRAFT



Page 386 of 432

DRAFT



Page 387 of 432

DRAFT



Page 388 of 432

DRAFT



Page 389 of 432

DRAFT



Page 390 of 432

DRAFT



Page 391 of 432

DRAFT



Page 392 of 432

DRAFT



Page 393 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C30 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 6.30.22.pdf

Page 394 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-63022.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Advanced Roofing, Inc. General, HVAC, Roofing, 
and Solar Contractor 

$40,000,000.00 July 31, 2023 

Communications Solutions, Inc. Specialty Electrical 
Contractor 

$300,000.00 July 31, 2023 

McCurdy-Walden, Inc. Roofing Contractor $5,000,000.00 July 31, 2023 

Playmore Recreational Products & 
Services 

Building Contractor $5,000,000.00 July 31, 2023 

Precise Cabling, Inc. Electrical Contractor $1,000,000.00 July 31, 2023 

 

Page 395 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C31 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights Elementary School New
Cafeteria/Classrooms

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage. Phase III Construction Manager’s cost is
estimated at $19,403,364.00.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The school administration/departments have had the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project
that will meet user's expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights Elementary School New
Cafeteria/Classrooms.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This project is budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 396 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Adopt Superintendent’s Memorandum in Support of Declaration of Emergency and Approve the emergency adoption and
implementation of amendments to the Manual of Procedures for Media Services and The Handbook of Instructional Materials
Procedures as contained in School Board Policies 4.44C and 4.45 respectively

Description
The Florida legislature, on March 8, 2022, passed House Bill 1467, which bill was approved by the Governor on March 25, 2022
and was filed with the Secretary of State on March 25, 2022 as Laws of Florida Ch. 2022-21. Said bill added requirements for
each school board throughout the State of Florida to amend policies and procedures to further define training for school district
media personnel, the review and approval of all publications maintained in the district’s school media centers, inclusion of the
public generally and parents of district students specifically in the review and approval of said publications, and increase the
public participation in, the transparency of selection of and the website availability of all instructional materials intended to be
used by the school district prior to purchase of said materials while noting the objections to specific materials and listing those
which have been removed or discontinued The requirements of this legislation take effect on July 1, 2022. The School Board
Procedural Manual amendments and additions set forth herein meet the requirements of the legislation and provide for further
definition and implementation by the Superintendent through the establishment of procedures promulgated through his office.
The attached Procedure Manuals, were created to accomplish the legislative requirements by the set deadline. Because they meet
the definition of a “Rule” they are required to be approved by the School Board prior to implementation. The Superintendent is
asking that they be adopted on an emergency basis because there was insufficient time to comply with the full adoption process
required by Sec. 120.54, Fla. Statutes. Florida law provides that a Rule adopted by emergency procedures shall not be effective
for more than 90 days during which time the School Board may initiate and complete rulemaking to adopt a rule addressing the
subject of the emergency rule if it wishes the rule to extend beyond 90 days. This process requires publication of notice of
adoption and a public hearing.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
NA

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to implement the Policy while it continues with the formal adoption process
for the Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement and notice of public hearing for the attached Policies which have been previously adopted by
emergency rulemaking procedures.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
Undetermined at this time.  It is believed that the approval of the Policies is necessary to meet the requirements of the legislation
described herein.

Review Comments

Attachments
Page 397 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve amendment to School Board Manual of Procedures for
Media Services and The Handbook of Instructional Materials Procedures as contained in School Board Policies 4.44C and 4.45F
respectively

Description
The Florida legislature, on March 8, 2022, passed House Bill 1467, which bill was approved by the Governor on March 25, 2022
and was filed with the Secretary of State on March 25, 2022 as Laws of Florida Ch. 2022-21. Said bill added requirements for
each school board throughout the State of Florida to amend policies and procedures to further define training for school district
media personnel, the review and approval of all publications maintained in the district’s school media centers, inclusion of the
public generally and parents of district students specifically in the review and approval of said publications, and increase the
public participation in, the transparency of selection of and the website availability of all instructional materials intended to be
used by the school district prior to purchase of said materials while noting the objections to specific materials and listing those
which have been removed or discontinued The requirements of this legislation take effect on July 1, 2022. The School Board
Procedural Manual amendments and additions set forth herein meet the requirements of the legislation and provide for further
definition and implementation by the Superintendent through the establishment of procedures promulgated through his office.
The attached Procedural Manuals, created to accomplish the legislative requirements by the set deadline, were adopted on an
emergency basis on June 30, 2022 because there was insufficient time to comply with the full adoption process required by Sec.
120.54, Fla. Statutes. Because they meet the definition of a “Rule” they were required to be approved by the School Board prior
to implementation. Florida law provides that a Rule adopted by emergency procedures shall not be effective for more than 90
days during which time the School Board may initiate and complete rulemaking to adopt a rule addressing the subject of the
emergency rule if it wishes the rule to extend beyond 90 days. This process requires publication of notice of adoption and a
public hearing.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to advertise the proposed adoption and public hearing of the previously
adopted Manual of Procedures for Media Services and The Handbook of Instructional Materials Procedures as contained in
School Board Policies 4.44C and 4.45F respectively, which will then lead to the consideration of adoption of said Manuals by the
School Board after  the appropriate public hearing.  The Manual of Procedures for Media Services and The Handbook of
Instructional Materials Procedures as contained in School Board Policies 4.44C and 4.45F respectively, will be advertised,
submitted to the public for comment and to the Board for public hearing and consideration in the manner contemplated by the
Administrative Procedures Act.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement and notice of public hearing for the attached Manual of Procedures for Media Services and The
Handbook of Instructional Materials Procedures as contained in School Board Policies 4.44C and 4.45F respectively. which have
been previously adopted by emergency rulemaking procedures.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Page 398 of 432

DRAFT



Financial Impact
Undetermined at this time. It is believed that the approval of the Policies is necessary to meet the requirements of the legislation
described herein.

Review Comments

Attachments

Legal Adv Notice of PH SB Policies 4.44C & 4.45F.pdf

Page 399 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-notice-of-ph-sb-policies-444c-445f.pdf


 Approval  to  Advertise:  The  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida  (“the  Board”)  approves  the  advertisement  of 
 revisions  to  School  Board  Manual  of  Procedures  for  Media  Services  &  The  Handbook  of  Instructional  Materials 
 Procedures as contained in SB Policies 4.44C and 4.45F respectively. 

 Purpose  &  Effect:  The  proposed  amendments  are  intended  to  simplify,  update,  and  ensure  alignment  of 
 School  Board  Policies  with  state  law,  federal  law,  State  Board  of  Education  Rules,  and  other  applicable  rules 
 and regulations. 

 Access  to  Text  of  Proposed  Amendments:  The  full  text  of  the  proposed  revisions  to  School  Board  Manual  of 
 Procedures  for  Media  Services  &  The  Handbook  of  Instructional  Materials  Procedures  is  available  for 
 inspection  and  copying  by  the  public  in  the  Office  of  the  Superintendent  for  Clay  County  District  Schools, 
 located  at  900  Walnut  Street,  Green  Cove  Springs,  Florida  32043.  The  full  text  is  also  available  via  the  School 
 District’s  website  at  www.oneclay.net  under  the  School  Board  Meeting  Links,  School  Board  Agendas  -  June 
 30,  2022.  The  Superintendent  is  authorized  to  correct  technical  errors  in  grammar,  numbering,  section 
 designations, and cross-references as may be necessary to reflect the intention of such Policy amendments. 

 Rule  Making  Authority:  The  Board  is  authorized  to  adopt  revisions  to  School  Board  Manual  of  Procedures 
 for  Media  Services  &  The  Handbook  of  Instructional  Materials  Procedures  under  sections  120.54,  1001.31,  and 
 1001.32 of the Florida Statutes. 

 Laws  Implemented:  The  laws  implemented  by  the  above-referenced  policy  revisions  are  noted  under  each 
 section of the Policy. 

 Person(s)  Originating  Policy  Changes:  The  proposed  policy  was  originated  by  the  Superintendent  and  his 
 designee(s) in collaboration with the School Board Attorney. 

 Public  Hearing:  The  Board  intends  to  formally  adopt  the  revisions  to  School  Board  Manual  of  Procedures  for 
 Media  Services  &  The  Handbook  of  Instructional  Materials  Procedures  as  contained  in  SB  Policies  4.44C  and 
 4.45F  respectively  following  a  public  hearing.  The  public  hearing  shall  be  held  on  Thursday,  August  4, 
 2022,  during  the  course  of  the  Board’s  regular  meeting,  which  begins  at  6:00  p.m.  and  takes  place  in  the 
 Boardroom  at  the  Teacher  In-service  Training  Center  at  Fleming  Island  High  School,  2233  Village  Square 
 Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 Any  person  requiring  special  accommodations  to  attend  or  participate  in  public  meetings  should  advise  the 
 School  District  at  least  48  hours  before  the  meeting  by  contacting  the  Superintendent’s  Office  at  (904) 
 336-6508  .  If  you  are  hearing  or  speech  impaired,  you  may  contact  the  District  by  email  addressed  to 
 bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net  or by calling  (904) 336-6584  (TDD). 

 If  a  person  decides  to  appeal  any  decision  made  by  the  Board  with  respect  to  any  matter  considered  at  the 
 meeting,  he  or  she  will  need  a  record  of  the  proceedings,  and,  for  such  purpose,  he  or  she  may  need  to  ensure 
 that  a  verbatim  record  of  the  proceedings  is  made,  which  record  includes  the  testimony  and  evidence  upon 
 which the appeal is to be based. 

Page 400 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Adopt Superintendent’s Memorandum in Support of Declaration of Emergency and Approve the emergency adoption  and
implementation of School Board Policy Human Resources Policy 2.02 (Application and Recruitment) to add 2.02E. (Unlawful
Employment Practices)  and the creation of School board 4.66 (Curriculum and Instruction Required Instruction)

Description
The Florida legislature, on March 10, 2022, passed House Bill 7, which bill was approved by the Governor on April 22, 2022 and
was filed with the Secretary of State on April 22, 2022 as Laws of Florida Ch. 2022-72. Said bill added requirements for each
school board throughout the State of Florida to amend policies and procedures to further define unlawful employment practices
(F.S. 760.10) and delineate both prohibited and required instruction. The requirements of this legislation take effect on July 1,
2022. The School Board Policy amendments and additions set forth herein meet the requirements of the legislation and provide
for further definition and implementation by the Superintendent through the establishment of procedures promulgated through
his office. The attached Policies, were created to accomplish the legislative requirements by the set deadline. The Superintendent
is asking that they be adopted on an emergency basis there is insufficient time to comply with the full adoption process required
by Sec. 120.54, Fla. Statutes. Because they meet the definition of a “Rule” they are required to be approved by the School Board
prior to implementation. Florida law provides that a Rule adopted by emergency procedures shall not be effective for more than
90 days during which time the School Board may initiate and complete rulemaking to adopt a rule addressing the subject of the
emergency rule if it wishes the rule to extend beyond 90 days. This process requires publication of notice of adoption and a
public hearing.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to implement the Policies while it continues with the formal adoption process
for the Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement and notice of public hearing for the attached Policies which have been previously adopted by
emergency rulemaking procedures.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
Undetermined at this time. It is believed that the approval of the the Policies is necessary to meet the requirements of the
legislation described herein.

Review Comments

Attachments

Policy 2.02E (H.B.7_ F.S. 760.10 as amended) (3).pdf

Memorandum of Declaration of Emergency Policies 2022 H.B.7.pdf

Page 401 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-202e-hb7_-fs-76010-as-amended-3_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/memorandum-of-declaration-of-emergency-policies-2022-hb7.pdf


PROPOSED Policy 4.66 (H.B.7_ F.S.) (4) (3).docx

Page 402 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-policy-466-hb7_-fs-4-3.docx


PROPOSED Policy to satisfy House Bill 7; Laws of Florida 2022-72 

 

2.02 APPLICATION/RECRUITMENT 

 

E. Unlawful Employment Practices 

 

1. Subjecting any individual, as a condition of employment, membership, 

certification, licensing, credentialing, or passing an examination, to training, 

instruction, or any other required activity that espouses, promotes, advances, 

inculcates, or compels such individual to believe any of the following concepts 

constitutes discrimination based upon race, color, sex or national origin under this 

section.  This section does not replace but merely amplifies the principal of non-

discrimination set forth in Section “A” above.  The following are examples of 

specific concepts, attitudes, and/or beliefs which are prohibited as conditions of 

employment: 

 

  a. Members of one race, color, sex, or national origin are morally 

superior to members of another race, color, sex, or national origin.  

 

  b. An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, is inherently racist, sexist, or oppressive, whether consciously or 

unconsciously. 

 

  c. An individual’s moral character or status as either privileged or 

oppressed is necessarily determined by his or her race, color, sex, or national origin. 

 

  d. Members of one race, color, sex, or national origin cannot and 

should not attempt to treat others without respect to race, color, sex, or national 

origin. 

 

  e. An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, bears responsibility for, or should be discriminated against or receive adverse 

treatment because of, actions committed in the past by other members of the same 

race, color, sex, or national origin. 

 

  f.  An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, should be discriminated against or receive adverse treatment to achieve 

diversity, equity, or inclusion. 

 

Page 403 of 432

DRAFT



  g. An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, bears personal responsibility for and must feel guilt, anguish, or other forms 

of psychological distress because of actions, in which the individual played no part, 

committed in the past by other members of the same race, color, sex, or national 

origin.  

 

  h. Such virtues as merit, excellence, hard work, fairness, neutrality, 

objectivity, and racial colorblindness are racist or sexist, or were created by members 

of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin to oppress members of another race, 

color, sex, or national origin. 

 

 2. Paragraph 1, including all subparts, may not be construed to prohibit 

discussion of the concepts listed therein as part of a course of training or instruction, 

provided such training or instruction is given in an objective manner without 

endorsement of the concepts. 

Page 404 of 432

DRAFT



MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 

 

  

 

 WHEREAS, on March 10, 2022, the legislature of the State of Florida passed House Bill 

7, which Bill drastically alters the School board’s action requirements with regards to defining 

District Employment Practices and delineating both prohibited and required student instruction., 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, on April 22, 2022, the Governor of the State of Florida signed the above 

referenced House Bill, making it law, and   

 

 WHEREAS, the laws created by said House Bill take effect on July 1, 2022, and    

 

 WHEREAS, there was an expectation that the Florida Department of Education would 

provide detailed guidance as to how to draft required School Board Policy and implement the 

requirements of the legislation, and  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Education has provided no guidance as to how to 

implement the law, how to define the terms set forth in the law and what school board policy 

should contain, and     

 

 WHEREAS, it is incumbent upon the District School Board’s to craft Policy which will 

serve to give notice to the public of the prohibited acts and required student instruction established 

by the legislation, the obligations vis a vis the legislated rights and the valid expectations of the 

public in relation to those requirements set forth in this legislation, and    

 

 WHEREAS, there is insufficient time between April 22, 2022 (date signed by the Governor) and 

July 1, 2022 to comply with the full adoption process required by Sec. 120.54, Fla. Stat., and 

 

 WHEREAS, failure to comply with the requirements of the law will likely subject the District to 

sanctions which are as of yet undetermined and will profoundly affect the parents, students and employees 

of the District as well as the citizens of Clay County generally,      

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the undersigned states: 

 

 1. Conditions set forth above create an immediate danger to the public health, safety 

and welfare and require immediate emergency action by the School Board and the district to 

confront and control the danger. 

 

 2. School Board policy, in the form of the attached School Board Policies 2.02E 

“Unlawful Employment Practices” and 4.67, “Prohibition Against Discrimination; Required 

Instruction”  must be adopted in order to comply with the requirements of the  newly passed law and to 

further inform and protect the public, parents, students, and employees of the district from damages, 

injury  and liability exposure for possible violation of citizen’s rights and unintentional failure to 

protect the welfare of students. 

Page 405 of 432

DRAFT



 

 3. Emergency adoption of School Board Policies 2.20E and 4.67 is needed as there 

is insufficient time to adopt policy through the normal statutory process. 

 4. The School Board is asked only to take the action necessary to protect the public 

by adopting School Board Policies 2.20E and 4.67. 

 5. Procedural safeguards are provided by timely publication of intent to take 

emergency action, right of the public to be heard concerning this matter, limitation of the School 

Board's action to only those matters necessary to stem the immediate danger and limitation of the 

length of time that this emergency action will be effective to no more than ninety (90) days during 

which time formal adoption of the Reopening Plan pursuant to Sec. 120.54, Fla. Stat., will be 

pursued. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

________________________________________    _______________ 

DAVID S. BROSKIE        Date 

Superintendent of Schools 

 

 

 

Reviewed for Legal Sufficiency 

 

 

______________________________________    _______________ 

J. BRUCE BICKNER        Date 

Attorney for the School Board of Clay County 

Page 406 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve amendment to School Board Human Resources Policy 2.02
(Application and Recruitment) to add 2.02E. (Unlawful Employment Practices)  and the creation of School Board 4.66
(Curriculum and Instruction Required Instruction)

Description
The Florida legislature, on March 10, 2022, passed House Bill 7, which bill was approved by the Governor on April 22, 2022 and
was filed with the Secretary of State on April 22, 2022 as Laws of Florida Ch. 2022-72. Said bill added requirements for each
school board throughout the State of Florida to amend policies and procedures to further define unlawful employment practices
(F.S. 760.10) and delineate both prohibited and required instruction. The requirements of this legislation take effect on July 1,
2022. The School Board Policy amendments and additions set forth herein meet the requirements of the legislation and provide
for further definition and implementation by the Superintendent through the establishment of procedures promulgated through
his office. The attached Policies, created to accomplish the legislative requirements by the set deadline, were adopted on an
emergency basis on June 30, 2022 because there was insufficient time to comply with the full adoption process required by Sec.
120.54, Fla. Statutes. Because they meet the definition of a “Rule” they were required to be approved by the School Board prior
to implementation. Florida law provides that a Rule adopted by emergency procedures shall not be effective for more than 90
days during which time the School Board may initiate and complete rulemaking to adopt a rule addressing the subject of the
emergency rule if it wishes the rule to extend beyond 90 days. This process requires publication of notice of adoption and a
public hearing.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to advertise the proposed adoption and public hearing of the proposed rules
which will then lead to the consideration of passage of the Rules by the School Board after the appropriate public hearing. The
Policies/Rules will be advertised, submitted to the public for comment and to the Board for public hearing and consideration in
the manner contemplated by the Administrative Procedures Act.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement and notice of public hearing for the attached Policies which have been previously adopted by
emergency rulemaking procedures.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
Undetermined at this time. It is believed that the approval of the Policies is necessary to meet the requirements of the legislation
described herein.

Review Comments

Attachments

Policy 2.02E (H.B.7_ F.S. 760.10 as amended) (3).pdf
Page 407 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-202e-hb7_-fs-76010-as-amended-3.pdf


Legal Adv Notice of PH SB Policies 2.02E and 4.66.pdf

PROPOSED Policy 4.66 (H.B.7_ F.S.) (4) (3).docx

Page 408 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-notice-of-ph-sb-policies-202e-and-466.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-policy-466-hb7_-fs-4-3_1.docx


PROPOSED Policy to satisfy House Bill 7; Laws of Florida 2022-72 

 

2.02 APPLICATION/RECRUITMENT 

 

E. Unlawful Employment Practices 

 

1. Subjecting any individual, as a condition of employment, membership, 

certification, licensing, credentialing, or passing an examination, to training, 

instruction, or any other required activity that espouses, promotes, advances, 

inculcates, or compels such individual to believe any of the following concepts 

constitutes discrimination based upon race, color, sex or national origin under this 

section.  This section does not replace but merely amplifies the principal of non-

discrimination set forth in Section “A” above.  The following are examples of 

specific concepts, attitudes, and/or beliefs which are prohibited as conditions of 

employment: 

 

  a. Members of one race, color, sex, or national origin are morally 

superior to members of another race, color, sex, or national origin.  

 

  b. An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, is inherently racist, sexist, or oppressive, whether consciously or 

unconsciously. 

 

  c. An individual’s moral character or status as either privileged or 

oppressed is necessarily determined by his or her race, color, sex, or national origin. 

 

  d. Members of one race, color, sex, or national origin cannot and 

should not attempt to treat others without respect to race, color, sex, or national 

origin. 

 

  e. An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, bears responsibility for, or should be discriminated against or receive adverse 

treatment because of, actions committed in the past by other members of the same 

race, color, sex, or national origin. 

 

  f.  An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, should be discriminated against or receive adverse treatment to achieve 

diversity, equity, or inclusion. 

 

Page 409 of 432

DRAFT



  g. An individual, by virtue of his or her race, color, sex, or national 

origin, bears personal responsibility for and must feel guilt, anguish, or other forms 

of psychological distress because of actions, in which the individual played no part, 

committed in the past by other members of the same race, color, sex, or national 

origin.  

 

  h. Such virtues as merit, excellence, hard work, fairness, neutrality, 

objectivity, and racial colorblindness are racist or sexist, or were created by members 

of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin to oppress members of another race, 

color, sex, or national origin. 

 

 2. Paragraph 1, including all subparts, may not be construed to prohibit 

discussion of the concepts listed therein as part of a course of training or instruction, 

provided such training or instruction is given in an objective manner without 

endorsement of the concepts. 

Page 410 of 432

DRAFT



 Approval  to  Advertise:  The  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida  (“the  Board”)  approves  the  advertisement  of 
 revisions  to  SB  Policy  2.02  (Application  and  Recruitment)  to  add  2.02E  (Unlawful  Employment  Practices)  and 
 the creation of SB Policy 4.66 (Curriculum and Instruction Required Instruction). 

 Purpose  &  Effect:  The  proposed  amendments  are  intended  to  simplify,  update,  and  ensure  alignment  of 
 School  Board  Policies  with  state  law,  federal  law,  State  Board  of  Education  Rules,  and  other  applicable  rules 
 and regulations. 

 Access  to  Text  of  Proposed  Amendments:  The  full  text  of  the  proposed  revisions  to  SB  Policy  2.02E  and 
 4.66  is  available  for  inspection  and  copying  by  the  public  in  the  Office  of  the  Superintendent  for  Clay  County 
 District  Schools,  located  at  900  Walnut  Street,  Green  Cove  Springs,  Florida  32043.  The  full  text  is  also 
 available  via  the  School  District’s  website  at  www.oneclay.net  under  the  School  Board  Meeting  Links,  School 
 Board  Agendas  -  June  30,  2022.  The  Superintendent  is  authorized  to  correct  technical  errors  in  grammar, 
 numbering,  section  designations,  and  cross-references  as  may  be  necessary  to  reflect  the  intention  of  such 
 Policy amendments. 

 Rule  Making  Authority:  The  Board  is  authorized  to  adopt  revisions  to  SB  Policy  2.02E  and  4.66  under 
 sections 120.54, 1001.31, and 1001.32 of the Florida Statutes. 

 Laws  Implemented:  The  laws  implemented  by  the  above-referenced  policy  revisions  are  noted  under  each 
 section of the Policy. 

 Person(s)  Originating  Policy  Changes:  The  proposed  policy  was  originated  by  the  Superintendent  and  his 
 designee(s) in collaboration with the School Board Attorney. 

 Public  Hearing:  The  Board  intends  to  formally  adopt  the  revisions  to  SB  Policy  2.02E  and  4.66  following  a 
 public  hearing.  The  public  hearing  shall  be  held  on  Thursday,  August  4,  2022,  during  the  course  of  the 
 Board’s  regular  meeting,  which  begins  at  6:00  p.m.  and  takes  place  in  the  Boardroom  at  the  Teacher 
 In-service Training Center at Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 Any  person  requiring  special  accommodations  to  attend  or  participate  in  public  meetings  should  advise  the 
 School  District  at  least  48  hours  before  the  meeting  by  contacting  the  Superintendent’s  Office  at  (904) 
 336-6508  .  If  you  are  hearing  or  speech  impaired,  you  may  contact  the  District  by  email  addressed  to 
 bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net  or by calling  (904) 336-6584  (TDD). 

 If  a  person  decides  to  appeal  any  decision  made  by  the  Board  with  respect  to  any  matter  considered  at  the 
 meeting,  he  or  she  will  need  a  record  of  the  proceedings,  and,  for  such  purpose,  he  or  she  may  need  to  ensure 
 that  a  verbatim  record  of  the  proceedings  is  made,  which  record  includes  the  testimony  and  evidence  upon 
 which the appeal is to be based. 

Page 411 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D5 - Adopt Superintendent’s Memorandum in Support of Declaration of Emergency and Approve the emergency adoption  and
implementation of School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights and Student Welfare)

Description
The Florida legislature, on March 8, 2022, passed House Bill 1557, which bill was approved by the Governor on March 28, 2022
and was filed with the Secretary of State on March 28, 2022 as Laws of Florida Ch. 2022-22. Said bill added requirements for
each school board throughout the State of Florida to amend policies and procedures to further define the fundamental rights of
parents of students by requiring notification of parents upon the occurrence of certain conditions, to restrict the adoption of
procedures which prohibit school personnel from notifying parents of students in instances in which students mental or physical
health or personal wellbeing is at risk or which procedures have the effect of discouraging students to withhold information from
their parents. The legislation does provide for withholding information from parents when, in the judgment of the disclosure
would result in the neglect, abuse or abandonment of the student by the parent. The legislation prohibits classroom instruction of
certain parties on matters of gender orientation or identity, requires standardized training to be provided to school district
personnel, requires parental notification of specific healthcare services, requires school districts to obtain written permission
prior to administration of healthcare procedures, requires school districts to resolve concerns of parents or to notify parents as to
why the concerns were not resolved, allows a parent whose concerns were not resolved to seek a hearing before a special
magistrate to resolve the parental concerns through the State Board of Education at the expense of the District and provides for
suit by the parents against the District to seek injunctive relief, damages and court costs and attorney’s fees. The requirements of
this legislation take effect on July 1, 2022. The School Board Policy additions set forth herein meet the requirements of the
legislation and provide for further definition and implementation by the Superintendent through the establishment of procedures
promulgated through his office. The attached Policy, was created to accomplish the legislative requirements by the set deadline.
The Superintendent is asking that it be adopted on an emergency basis on June 30, 2022 because there was insufficient time to
comply with the full adoption process required by Sec. 120.54, Fla. Statutes. Because it meets the definition of a “Rule” it is
required to be approved by the School Board prior to implementation. Florida law provides that a Rule adopted by emergency
procedures shall  not  be effective for  more than 90 days during which time the School  Board may initiate  and complete
rulemaking to adopt a rule addressing the subject of the emergency rule if it wishes the rule to extend beyond 90 days. This
process requires publication of notice of adoption and a public hearing.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to implement the Policy while it continues with the formal adoption process
for the Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
Undetermined at this time. It is believed that the approval of the Policy is necessary to meet the requirements of the legislation
described herein.

Page 412 of 432

DRAFT



Review Comments

Attachments

Memorandum of Declaration of Emergency Policies 2022 (1).pdf

Policy for  H.B. 1557 (2022)and H.B 241 (2021) and docx (1).docxFINAL.pdf

Page 413 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/memorandum-of-declaration-of-emergency-policies-2022-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-for-hb-1557-2022and-hb-241-2021-and-docx-1docxfinal.pdf


MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 

 

  

 

 WHEREAS, on March 8, 2022, the legislature of the State of Florida passed House Bill 

1557, which Bill drastically alters the School board’s action requirements with regards to Parental 

Rights and Student Welfare., and 

 

 WHEREAS, on March28, 2022, the Governor of the State of Florida signed the above 

referenced House Bill, making it law, and   

 

 WHEREAS, the laws created by said House Bill take effect on July 1, 2022, and    

 

 WHEREAS, there was an expectation that the Florida Department of Education would 

provide detailed guidance as to how to draft required School Board Policy and implement the 

requirements of the legislation, and  

 

WHEREAS, The Florida Department of Education on June 6, 2022 issued,, through the Senior 

Chancellor , a long awaited “MEMORANDUM” on House Bill 1557 which restated the requirements of 

the legislation but provided no guidance as to its implementation, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Education has provided no other guidance as to 

how to implement the law, how to define the terms set forth in the law and what the required school 

board policy should contain, and     

 

 WHEREAS, it is incumbent upon the District School Board’s to craft Policy which will 

serve to give notice to the public of the rights established by the legislation, the obligations vis a 

vis the legislated rights and the remedies available to members of the public in relation to ensuring 

said rights, and    

 

 WHEREAS, there is insufficient time between March 28, 2022 (date signed by the Governor) 

and July 1, 2022 to comply with the full adoption process required by Sec. 120.54, Fla. Stat., and 

 

 WHEREAS, failure to comply with the requirements of the law will subject the District to 

sanctions which are as of yet undetermined and will profoundly affect the parents, students and employees 

of the District as well as the citizens of Clay County generally,      

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the undersigned states: 

 

 1. Conditions set forth above create an immediate danger to the public health, safety 

and welfare and require immediate emergency action by the School Board and the district to 

confront and control the danger. 

 

 2. School Board policy, in the form of the attached School Board Policy 1.15 “Parental 

Rights and Student Welfare” must be adopted in order to comply with the requirements of the  newly 

passed law and to further inform and protect the public, parents, students, and employees of the district 

Page 414 of 432

DRAFT



from damages, injury  and liability exposure for possible violation of parental rights and 

unintentional failure to protect the welfare of students. 

 

 3. Emergency adoption of School Board Policy 1.15 is needed as there is insufficient 

time to adopt policy through the normal statutory process. 

 4. The School Board is asked only to take the action necessary to protect the public 

by adopting School Board Policy 1.15. 

 5. Procedural safeguards are provided by timely publication of intent to take 

emergency action, right of the public to be heard concerning this matter, limitation of the School 

Board's action to only those matters necessary to stem the immediate danger and limitation of the 

length of time that this emergency action will be effective to no more than ninety (90) days during 

which time formal adoption of the Reopening Plan pursuant to Sec. 120.54, Fla. Stat., will be 

pursued. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

________________________________________    _______________ 

DAVID S. BROSKIE        Date 

Superintendent of Schools 

 

 

 

Reviewed for Legal Sufficiency 

 

 

______________________________________    _______________ 

J. BRUCE BICKNER        Date 

Attorney for the School Board of Clay County 

Page 415 of 432

DRAFT



Policy to meet the demands of F.S. 1014.04 (H,B,241(2021) and H.B.1557 

 

1.15 PARENTAL RIGHTS AND STUDENT WELFARE 

 

A. All parental rights are reserved to the parent of a minor child in this 

state without obstruction or interference from the School Board or any of its agents, 

employees, or volunteers.  Such parental rights are enumerated in Florida Statutes 

1002.20, 1042(8), and 1014.04.  Those parental rights listed in 1014.04 include, but 

are not limited to, all of the following rights of a parent of a minor child enrolled as 

a student in Clay District Schools: 

 

  1. The right to direct the education and care of his or her minor 

child.  

 

  2. The right to direct the upbringing and the moral or religious 

training of his or her minor child. 

 

  3. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(2)(b) and (6), to apply to enroll 

his or her  minor child in a public school or, as an alternative to public education, a 

private school, including a religious school, a home education program, or other 

available options, as authorized by law.  

 

  4. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(13), to access and review all 

school records relating to his or her minor child.  

 

  5. The right to make health care decisions for his or her minor child, 

unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

 

  6. The right to access and review all medical records of his or her 

minor child, unless prohibited by law or if the parent is the subject of an investigation 

of a crime committed against the minor child and a law enforcement agency or 

official requests that the information not be released. 

 

  7. The right to consent in writing before a biometric scan of his or 

her minor child is made, shared, or stored.  

 

  8. The right to consent in writing before any record of his or her 

minor child’s blood or deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) is created, stored, or shared, 

except as required by general law or authorized pursuant to a court order.  

 

Page 416 of 432

DRAFT



  9. The right to consent in writing before the state or any of its 

political subdivisions makes a video or voice recording of his or her minor child 

unless such recording is made during or as part of a court proceeding or is made as 

part of a forensic interview in a criminal or Department of Children and Families 

investigation or is to be used solely for the following purposes:  

 

   (a) A safety demonstration, including the maintenance of 

order and discipline in the common areas of a school or on student transportation 

vehicles;  

 

   (b) A purpose related to a legitimate academic or 

extracurricular activity;  

 

   (c) A purpose related to regular classroom instructions; 

 

   (d) Security or surveillance of buildings or grounds; or  

 

   (e) A photo identification card. 

 

  10. The right to be notified promptly if an employee of the state, any 

of its political subdivisions, any other governmental entity, or any other institution 

suspects that a criminal offense has been committed against his or her minor child, 

unless the incident has first been reported to law enforcement or the Department of 

Children and Families and notifying the parent would impede the investigation. 

 

 B. The  parental rights listed in F.S.1001.42(8)(c)1 as set forth in 

Laws of Florida 2022-22 include, but are not limited to, all of the following rights 

of a parent of a minor child enrolled as a student in Clay District Schools: 

  

 

1.        School District personnel shall notify a student’s parent if there 

is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the student’s 

mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the school’s ability to 

provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student.  

 

    2. School District personnel are required to encourage a student to 

discuss issues relating to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate 

discussion of the issue with the parent.  

 

Page 417 of 432

DRAFT



    3. School district personnel may not discourage or prohibit parental 

notification of and involvement in critical decisions affecting a student’s mental, 

emotional, or physical health or well-being. 

 

  4. School District Policies, Procedures and Student support forms 

may not  prohibit school district personnel from notifying a parent about his or her 

student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being, or a change in related 

services or monitoring, or that encourage or have the effect of encouraging a student 

to withhold from a parent such information. 

 

  5. The Superintendent of Schools, by and through his designated 

administrators, shall draft procedures to implement the forgoing policies (1 through 

4) by reinforcing the fundamental rights of parents to make decisions regarding the 

up-bringing and control of their children. 

 

. 6. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 

implement this policy shall prohibit School District personnel from adopting 

procedures that permit school personnel to withhold such information from a parent 

if a reasonably prudent person would believe that disclosure would result in abuse, 

abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida Statutes. 

 

  7. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 

implement this policy shall prohibit, or be construed to prohibit, parents from 

accessing any of their student’s education and health records created, maintained, or 

used by the school district, as required by s. 1002.22(2). 

 

  8. Classroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on 

sexual orientation or gender identity may not occur in kindergarten through grade 3 

or in a manner that is not age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for 

students in accordance with state standards. 

 

  9. Student support services training developed or provided by a 

school district to school district personnel must adhere to student services guidelines, 

standards, and frameworks established by the Department of Education. 

 

  10. At the beginning of the school year, the school district shall 

notify parents of each healthcare service offered at their student’s school and the 

option to withhold consent or decline any specific service.  Parental consent to a 

health care service does not waive the parent’s right to access his or her student’s 

Page 418 of 432

DRAFT



educational or health records or to be notified about a change in his or her student’s 

services or monitoring as provided by this paragraph.  

 

. 11. Before administering a student well-being questionnaire or 

health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3, the school district 

must provide the questionnaire or health screening form to the parent and obtain the 

permission of the parent to proceed with the administration of the questioning.  

 

  12. The Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, shall adopt 

procedures for a parent to notify the principal, or his or her designee, regarding 

concerns about the implementation of any part of this entire Policy or its associated 

procedures at his or her student’s school and the process for resolving those concerns 

within 7 calendar days after notification by the parent. 

 

  a. At a minimum, the procedures must require that within 30 days 

after notification by the parent that the concern remains unresolved, the school 

district must either resolve the concern or provide a statement of the reasons for not 

resolving the concern. 

 

  b. If a concern is not resolved by the school district, a parent may 

either: 

 

   (1) Request the Commissioner of Education to appoint a 

special magistrate who is a member of The Florida Bar in good standing and who 

has at least 5 years’ experience in administrative law.  

 

    The special magistrate shall determine facts relating to the 

dispute over the school district policy or procedure/practice, consider information 

provided by the school district, and render a recommended decision for resolution 

to the State Board of Education within 30 days after receipt of the request by the 

parent.  

 

    The State Board of Education must approve or reject the 

recommended decision at its next regularly scheduled meeting that is more than 7 

calendar days and no more than 30 days after the date the recommended decision is 

transmitted.  

 

    The costs of the special magistrate shall be borne by the 

school district.  

 

Page 419 of 432

DRAFT



   (2) Bring a legal action against the School Board of Clay 

County, Florida to obtain a declaratory judgment that the school district 

procedure/practice violates this Policy and seek injunctive relief.  

 

    The court may award damages and shall award reasonable 

attorney fees and court costs to a parent who receives declaratory or injunctive relief.  

  c. Each school district shall adopt policies to notify parents of the 

procedures required under this subparagraph.  

 

  d. Nothing contained in this subparagraph shall be construed to 

abridge or alter rights of action or remedies in equity already existing under the 

common law or general law. 

 

 C. As used in this policy, the term “Parent” shall be defined to include a 

natural or adopted parent, step-parent, legal guardian, state agency appointed as a 

child’s guardian or any other individual or entity designated by applicable law as 

“the parent”. 

 

 D. Nothing contained in this Policy or in procedures drafted to implement 

this Policy, shall require any School District personnel to inform a parent of 

communications between a student and school personnel if it is determined: 

 

  1. That the student, after being encouraged to discuss issues relating 

to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate discussion of the issue 

with the parent, indicates an unwillingness or outright refusal to enter into discussion 

with his/her parents concerning those matters about which the student communicated 

with School District personnel, and 

 

  2. That there is no change in the student’s services or monitoring 

related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the 

school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the 

student, or 

 

  3. Information has been disclosed to the School District personnel 

by the student or other individual(s) which would cause a reasonably prudent person 

to believe that disclosure of the communicated information to a parent would result 

in abuse, abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida 

Statutes. 

 

 

Page 420 of 432

DRAFT



 

References: Florida Statutes 39.01; 1002.42; 1002.20; 1014.04; Laws of Florida 

2022-22; Laws of Florida 2021-199;  

 

 

Page 421 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D6 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve the creation and implementation of School Board Policy
1.15 (Parental Rights and Student Welfare)

Description
The Florida legislature, on March 8, 2022, passed House Bill 1557, which bill was approved by the Governor on March 28, 2022
and was filed with the Secretary of State on March 28, 2022 as Laws of Florida Ch. 2022-22. Said bill added requirements for
each school board throughout the State of Florida to amend policies and procedures to further define the fundamental rights of
parents of students by requiring notification of parents upon the occurrence of certain conditions, to restrict the adoption of
procedures which prohibit school personnel from notifying parents of students in instances in which students mental or physical
health or personal wellbeing is at risk or which procedures have the effect of discouraging students to withhold information from
their parents. The legislation does provide for withholding information from parents when, in the judgment of the disclosure
would result in the neglect, abuse or abandonment of the student by the parent. The legislation prohibits classroom instruction of
certain parties on matters of gender orientation or identity, requires standardized training to be provided to school district
personnel, requires parental notification of specific healthcare services, requires school districts to obtain written permission
prior to administration of healthcare procedures, requires school districts to resolve concerns of parents or to notify parents as to
why the concerns were not resolved, allows a parent whose concerns were not resolved to seek a hearing before a special
magistrate to resolve the parental concerns through the State Board of Education at the expense of the District and provides for
suit by the parents against the District to seek injunctive relief, damages and court costs and attorney’s fees. The requirements of
this legislation take effect on July 1, 2022. The School Board Policy additions set forth herein meet the requirements of the
legislation and provide for further definition and implementation by the Superintendent through the establishment of procedures
promulgated through his office. The attached Policy, created to accomplish the legislative requirements by the set deadline, was
adopted on an emergency basis on June 30, 2022 because there was insufficient time to comply with the full adoption process
required by Sec. 120.54, Fla. Statutes. Because they meet the definition of a “Rule” they were required to be approved by the
School Board prior to implementation. Florida law provides that a Rule adopted by emergency procedures shall not be effective
for more than 90 days during which time the School Board may initiate and complete rulemaking to adopt a rule addressing the
subject of the emergency rule if it wishes the rule to extend beyond 90 days. This process requires publication of notice of
adoption and a public hearing.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to advertise the proposed adoption and public hearing of the proposed rule
which will then lead to the consideration of passage of the Rule by the School Board after the appropriate public hearing. The
Policy/Rule will be advertised, submitted to the public for comment and to the Board for public hearing and consideration in the
manner contemplated by the Administrative Procedures Act.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement and notice of public hearing for the attached Policy which has been previously adopted by emergency
rulemaking procedures.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Page 422 of 432

DRAFT



Financial Impact
Undetermined at this time. It is believed that the approval of the Policy is necessary to meet the requirements of the legislation
described herein.

Review Comments

Attachments

Policy for  H.B. 1557 (2022)and H.B 241 (2021) and docx (1).docxFINAL.pdf

Legal Adv Notice of PH SB Policy 1.15.pdf

Page 423 of 432

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/policy-for-hb-1557-2022and-hb-241-2021-and-docx-1docxfinal_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-notice-of-ph-sb-policy-115.pdf


Policy to meet the demands of F.S. 1014.04 (H,B,241(2021) and H.B.1557 

 

1.15 PARENTAL RIGHTS AND STUDENT WELFARE 

 

A. All parental rights are reserved to the parent of a minor child in this 

state without obstruction or interference from the School Board or any of its agents, 

employees, or volunteers.  Such parental rights are enumerated in Florida Statutes 

1002.20, 1042(8), and 1014.04.  Those parental rights listed in 1014.04 include, but 

are not limited to, all of the following rights of a parent of a minor child enrolled as 

a student in Clay District Schools: 

 

  1. The right to direct the education and care of his or her minor 

child.  

 

  2. The right to direct the upbringing and the moral or religious 

training of his or her minor child. 

 

  3. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(2)(b) and (6), to apply to enroll 

his or her  minor child in a public school or, as an alternative to public education, a 

private school, including a religious school, a home education program, or other 

available options, as authorized by law.  

 

  4. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(13), to access and review all 

school records relating to his or her minor child.  

 

  5. The right to make health care decisions for his or her minor child, 

unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

 

  6. The right to access and review all medical records of his or her 

minor child, unless prohibited by law or if the parent is the subject of an investigation 

of a crime committed against the minor child and a law enforcement agency or 

official requests that the information not be released. 

 

  7. The right to consent in writing before a biometric scan of his or 

her minor child is made, shared, or stored.  

 

  8. The right to consent in writing before any record of his or her 

minor child’s blood or deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) is created, stored, or shared, 

except as required by general law or authorized pursuant to a court order.  

 

Page 424 of 432

DRAFT



  9. The right to consent in writing before the state or any of its 

political subdivisions makes a video or voice recording of his or her minor child 

unless such recording is made during or as part of a court proceeding or is made as 

part of a forensic interview in a criminal or Department of Children and Families 

investigation or is to be used solely for the following purposes:  

 

   (a) A safety demonstration, including the maintenance of 

order and discipline in the common areas of a school or on student transportation 

vehicles;  

 

   (b) A purpose related to a legitimate academic or 

extracurricular activity;  

 

   (c) A purpose related to regular classroom instructions; 

 

   (d) Security or surveillance of buildings or grounds; or  

 

   (e) A photo identification card. 

 

  10. The right to be notified promptly if an employee of the state, any 

of its political subdivisions, any other governmental entity, or any other institution 

suspects that a criminal offense has been committed against his or her minor child, 

unless the incident has first been reported to law enforcement or the Department of 

Children and Families and notifying the parent would impede the investigation. 

 

 B. The  parental rights listed in F.S.1001.42(8)(c)1 as set forth in 

Laws of Florida 2022-22 include, but are not limited to, all of the following rights 

of a parent of a minor child enrolled as a student in Clay District Schools: 

  

 

1.        School District personnel shall notify a student’s parent if there 

is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the student’s 

mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the school’s ability to 

provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student.  

 

    2. School District personnel are required to encourage a student to 

discuss issues relating to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate 

discussion of the issue with the parent.  

 

Page 425 of 432

DRAFT



    3. School district personnel may not discourage or prohibit parental 

notification of and involvement in critical decisions affecting a student’s mental, 

emotional, or physical health or well-being. 

 

  4. School District Policies, Procedures and Student support forms 

may not  prohibit school district personnel from notifying a parent about his or her 

student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being, or a change in related 

services or monitoring, or that encourage or have the effect of encouraging a student 

to withhold from a parent such information. 

 

  5. The Superintendent of Schools, by and through his designated 

administrators, shall draft procedures to implement the forgoing policies (1 through 

4) by reinforcing the fundamental rights of parents to make decisions regarding the 

up-bringing and control of their children. 

 

. 6. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 

implement this policy shall prohibit School District personnel from adopting 

procedures that permit school personnel to withhold such information from a parent 

if a reasonably prudent person would believe that disclosure would result in abuse, 

abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida Statutes. 

 

  7. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 

implement this policy shall prohibit, or be construed to prohibit, parents from 

accessing any of their student’s education and health records created, maintained, or 

used by the school district, as required by s. 1002.22(2). 

 

  8. Classroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on 

sexual orientation or gender identity may not occur in kindergarten through grade 3 

or in a manner that is not age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for 

students in accordance with state standards. 

 

  9. Student support services training developed or provided by a 

school district to school district personnel must adhere to student services guidelines, 

standards, and frameworks established by the Department of Education. 

 

  10. At the beginning of the school year, the school district shall 

notify parents of each healthcare service offered at their student’s school and the 

option to withhold consent or decline any specific service.  Parental consent to a 

health care service does not waive the parent’s right to access his or her student’s 

Page 426 of 432

DRAFT



educational or health records or to be notified about a change in his or her student’s 

services or monitoring as provided by this paragraph.  

 

. 11. Before administering a student well-being questionnaire or 

health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3, the school district 

must provide the questionnaire or health screening form to the parent and obtain the 

permission of the parent to proceed with the administration of the questioning.  

 

  12. The Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, shall adopt 

procedures for a parent to notify the principal, or his or her designee, regarding 

concerns about the implementation of any part of this entire Policy or its associated 

procedures at his or her student’s school and the process for resolving those concerns 

within 7 calendar days after notification by the parent. 

 

  a. At a minimum, the procedures must require that within 30 days 

after notification by the parent that the concern remains unresolved, the school 

district must either resolve the concern or provide a statement of the reasons for not 

resolving the concern. 

 

  b. If a concern is not resolved by the school district, a parent may 

either: 

 

   (1) Request the Commissioner of Education to appoint a 

special magistrate who is a member of The Florida Bar in good standing and who 

has at least 5 years’ experience in administrative law.  

 

    The special magistrate shall determine facts relating to the 

dispute over the school district policy or procedure/practice, consider information 

provided by the school district, and render a recommended decision for resolution 

to the State Board of Education within 30 days after receipt of the request by the 

parent.  

 

    The State Board of Education must approve or reject the 

recommended decision at its next regularly scheduled meeting that is more than 7 

calendar days and no more than 30 days after the date the recommended decision is 

transmitted.  

 

    The costs of the special magistrate shall be borne by the 

school district.  

 

Page 427 of 432

DRAFT



   (2) Bring a legal action against the School Board of Clay 

County, Florida to obtain a declaratory judgment that the school district 

procedure/practice violates this Policy and seek injunctive relief.  

 

    The court may award damages and shall award reasonable 

attorney fees and court costs to a parent who receives declaratory or injunctive relief.  

  c. Each school district shall adopt policies to notify parents of the 

procedures required under this subparagraph.  

 

  d. Nothing contained in this subparagraph shall be construed to 

abridge or alter rights of action or remedies in equity already existing under the 

common law or general law. 

 

 C. As used in this policy, the term “Parent” shall be defined to include a 

natural or adopted parent, step-parent, legal guardian, state agency appointed as a 

child’s guardian or any other individual or entity designated by applicable law as 

“the parent”. 

 

 D. Nothing contained in this Policy or in procedures drafted to implement 

this Policy, shall require any School District personnel to inform a parent of 

communications between a student and school personnel if it is determined: 

 

  1. That the student, after being encouraged to discuss issues relating 

to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate discussion of the issue 

with the parent, indicates an unwillingness or outright refusal to enter into discussion 

with his/her parents concerning those matters about which the student communicated 

with School District personnel, and 

 

  2. That there is no change in the student’s services or monitoring 

related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the 

school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the 

student, or 

 

  3. Information has been disclosed to the School District personnel 

by the student or other individual(s) which would cause a reasonably prudent person 

to believe that disclosure of the communicated information to a parent would result 

in abuse, abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida 

Statutes. 

 

 

Page 428 of 432

DRAFT



 

References: Florida Statutes 39.01; 1002.42; 1002.20; 1014.04; Laws of Florida 

2022-22; Laws of Florida 2021-199;  

 

 

Page 429 of 432

DRAFT



 Approval  to  Advertise:  The  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida  (“the  Board”)  approves  the  advertisement  of 
 revisions to SB Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights and Student Welfare). 

 Purpose  &  Effect:  The  proposed  amendments  are  intended  to  simplify,  update,  and  ensure  alignment  of 
 School  Board  Policies  with  state  law,  federal  law,  State  Board  of  Education  Rules,  and  other  applicable  rules 
 and regulations. 

 Access  to  Text  of  Proposed  Amendments:  The  full  text  of  the  proposed  revisions  to  SB  Policy  1.15  is 
 available  for  inspection  and  copying  by  the  public  in  the  Office  of  the  Superintendent  for  Clay  County  District 
 Schools,  located  at  900  Walnut  Street,  Green  Cove  Springs,  Florida  32043.  The  full  text  is  also  available  via 
 the  School  District’s  website  at  www.oneclay.net  under  the  School  Board  Meeting  Links,  School  Board 
 Agendas  -  June  30,  2022.  The  Superintendent  is  authorized  to  correct  technical  errors  in  grammar, 
 numbering,  section  designations,  and  cross-references  as  may  be  necessary  to  reflect  the  intention  of  such 
 Policy amendments. 

 Rule  Making  Authority:  The  Board  is  authorized  to  adopt  revisions  to  SB  Policy  1.15  under  sections  120.54, 
 1001.31, and 1001.32 of the Florida Statutes. 

 Laws  Implemented:  The  laws  implemented  by  the  above-referenced  policy  revisions  are  noted  under  each 
 section of the Policy. 

 Person(s)  Originating  Policy  Changes:  The  proposed  policy  was  originated  by  the  Superintendent  and  his 
 designee(s) in collaboration with the School Board Attorney. 

 Public  Hearing:  The  Board  intends  to  formally  adopt  the  revisions  to  SB  Policy  1.15  following  a  public  hearing. 
 The  public  hearing  shall  be  held  on  Thursday,  August  4,  2022,  during  the  course  of  the  Board’s  regular 
 meeting,  which  begins  at  6:00  p.m.  and  takes  place  in  the  Boardroom  at  the  Teacher  In-service  Training 
 Center at Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 Any  person  requiring  special  accommodations  to  attend  or  participate  in  public  meetings  should  advise  the 
 School  District  at  least  48  hours  before  the  meeting  by  contacting  the  Superintendent’s  Office  at  (904) 
 336-6508  .  If  you  are  hearing  or  speech  impaired,  you  may  contact  the  District  by  email  addressed  to 
 bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net  or by calling  (904) 336-6584  (TDD). 

 If  a  person  decides  to  appeal  any  decision  made  by  the  Board  with  respect  to  any  matter  considered  at  the 
 meeting,  he  or  she  will  need  a  record  of  the  proceedings,  and,  for  such  purpose,  he  or  she  may  need  to  ensure 
 that  a  verbatim  record  of  the  proceedings  is  made,  which  record  includes  the  testimony  and  evidence  upon 
 which the appeal is to be based. 

Page 430 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D7 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 431 of 432

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 30, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D8 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 432 of 432

DRAFT


